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1! OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue Carbon offsets
Revenue has increased by Cur renewablie energy sites’
over 82% in the last 3 years carbon saving is over 822,600
from £390m in 2020 to carbon tonnes this year

£712m in 2027

Energy generation Number of loéns
Our renewable energy Over the year we
assets produce enough provided financing to, on
energy to power over average 182 borrowers

a million UK homes in the UK

Number of employees Number of sites
We employ over 1,690 We own 220 renewable
people energy sites spread

predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Our Group was in a soinc position coming oul of
1e lockdowr response to Covid-19, and aur

[0 s

usiness has confinued to perform rooustly
trroughout the year This year has seen some
unforecasted growth in vaiue of certa n civisionrs

primarily drven by the increase i energy oric

Fern Trading Limited {"the C \,vwmparwy or tocetner
witr its subsidares "the Group’) argets consstent
growlth for shareholaers over tre long rerm, with &
focus on stoady and gred'ciab.e growth, this s
parucularty rﬂporf"“' cur ng more challenging
economic consitions We nave a diversifes and
mature business befitting a Group with mere thar
12 years of trading story and ambition The Group
compnscs more than 00 comparnties that rave
cperated in a range of sectors over many yea
gereratng steady long-term growth for cur
sharehclders We operate 'n essential sectors that
we expect 1o perform stead ly throug market
vaolatdity.

Fram tniz secure base we have beer abe to add
incremental exparsion and diversificaton in g
measurec way through seekng out opporturities n
new adjacert sectors. Thase sectors provide Js
with a platform to contrue 1 expand N one with
cur existing strategy Today, our Sroup COmprnses
energy, propearty lerzdmg, heaithcare infrastructure,
fbre and nouse buldirg divisions. We nave grow™
0 Be g sigriacart presence withirn Gur most

established sectors producng 4 2% of tne UK's

sociar energy and 1.7% of the UK's onshore wind
energy cuiput, and buld ng 2 £361m short and
rmedium term lerd ng Busiress tnat facilitates tre

constructhon and imrproverrent of homes

trroaghout fre JK

Tre Company’s share price desvered 10% growth
12 morths, wel anead of cur arget
of 4% growth oer annum. The extraorainary growih
i< attnibutable o cur erargy civition, woich has
benefitted fror a zign Acant ncrease i iong-term
energy proe forecasts and erergy forward rates

over tre pericg, in addition to infaticon. Tris

Increase in the vaiue of our energy division was
supported By scolid operationa: performance acress
ali sectors and some organ:c growth in newer
SeCtors.

We remair a s hJrJurt:v@ employer with mare than
1.590 fuil-tirme staff across the busines
own and operate, and irdirect employrment
provided for hurdreds mare peoole through

ontracts that we have in pla

ses that we

A reflection on our year

Cur busness raised £404m frorm investors this year,
celivered consistent revenues while growing capita.
depoyment, resuling in £712m in reverue
generated across the Groun (2021 rél/er ard ret

assets of £2.219m {2021 £1,.888m reztated

Trie financiai staterments for the yaar show an
operating proht befor
exoect@d outcome of a smal acceunting profit. Tas

e ax of fAZm agamst oudr

oust per ance s a direct resuu Of energy

produced oy the group beimg soid for higher prices
o

f our busine

dunrg the year. Almost 60%
coraprises rengwatle energy generati<ig assets such

az solar energy sites and wind farms, whicrn provide

lorg term revenue strearns. | tese are intenbonaly

diversificd across a range of imchnoweges 1o ritigae
aganst poor performance noa specific sector and
contribute towards steady, predictable share price
growth, however, their values can stili be 'mpacted
by changes in oricirg and demand. We have seen
consecutve ard materal increases in lang term
energy prce forecasts and ecemy forwars rawes
globally over the ast 15
ecoromy recovers from the Covid-19 panderric,
and seeks aternanve scurces of energy as z result oF
tre conflict m Ukraine. Alorg weth nifiation, these
faciors nave maerially increzsec the value of ¢

onths as the global

o

‘0

-
A

Group's energy ass

yEarwith t
JUsdICnons, as well 3t Lsing our experuse o amer

trhe JK cormnmerciatl and Industrial rooTop solar
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Chief Executive’'s review

markets and startna corstruction on a large wina

farrn in Australia. At the start of the year we added
nne additional sites o our reserve power divisic
ites in total (compared o

These sites nave

wWICh DRngs us uo 0 20 8
of 2021]
performed ahead ”chp I'ors, gen
EBITDA of £2 6 2097 fip )G G

ten sites for mos: ©
erating
he wear

estaglisned blomass
and hes

Cur successful and well-
rroerm well
cle retlirns since acguisition ir 2015,

GiVISION CONNNGes 1o pe
delivered staz
This year, | have been particularly pleased to ses
strong performance at our neweast Domrass site n
Snetertor, East Angila, which was acauirea in Aorl
2021, prcvmg to be
busingss. During tn
o-Frergy fac
Ayrshre. The & vin developrrent for

three yaars and will De Capable

a vaiuakie add'tc
we purchased g Waste-
y under construction in

on To the

liry curre
acility has been
of processing over
185,600 tonres ser annurn of nor-recyclanle
houserod, commerc al and industnal waste wnich
wolld ctherwise be sent (o landfill or expored
This wil generate 17 MWe of iow carbon electricity,
enough to power 30,000 homes [T will be the frst
large-scale, subsidy free wacte-fo-energy project in
western Scotlana and prolected completion date is
I earyy 2024

Over recent years, many of our enargy assets have
been under consruchion wintch has contributed to
our previousiy reported accounting losses. This i
typical of such businesses during growih ohase
even whien cash generat've, because finarcs costs
and accounting charges, such as depreciation,
exceedead revenues. This aivisicn has now reached
our target size and sector split

Accordingly this year { am pleased to report an
accountng orofit before tax of F48m against our
pudgeted small accounting proft This shightly
arger tran expectad orofit s due to the matunty of
the porifolio and higher energy prices; resulting in
ncreased revenua frorm our energy dvision as weil

as an ncrease in inflation (as

explained below)

Cr property lending business markes Lo around
27% of the Greup and cormprizes snort anc medium
0 excenenced property

term secured woans
four business

orofessiorals, Tis establisned part of o
f o low g & short penad
P

continuec to perform wel

of slow down during Crovd-19
nientionally chose o write fewer toans Our average
©ar book was 182 oans this year 1o UL borrowers

Cur lending drvsion has always o
conservaive loan to value levels (below 70%; in
order that it maintairs access to valuakle secunty if
Dropery values
epton 12 ye
rrough periods of change

there 15 3 reducticniin

nas served the Group well simce inc rs
ago, and it nas operated
ceveral tirmes. The Groap s taking a naturaly
cautious approach when assessing new lencing
apportunites in ight of the changing economic
outiook, To dare, t

since nceprion in 2010, suffering

he Group has lert £2 Zon of
groperty loans
only £6m in capita. loszes, This stirong track record
s the result of our carefu. acproachn in th's secicr,
comprising ciscipaned due dilgerce, conservative
‘can-to-vatue ratios ard an ability and willingriess to
redyce activity in thie sector during tmes of
onomic uncerainty We wil, continue to adopt
this anproach trodghout tne coming year,

The healthcare div sion makes Lp around 4% of the
is

ed
brea dty performing wel Our

Group and
ayremert villages business, Rangeford Boldings
Limited (f ng ord") continued to sel apartments

al three sites, commerced construction of a fourth
vitlage in Cherisey, and acguired a f%h location
near Cambridge during the year. Sales at the
Chertsey site are expected to commence in 2044,
whie construcuon at the Cambridge sie s
expected ta start in 2022 with the first sales
coramencing in 2026

Our fibre dwision was established in 2019 and
rermains an area of growth for the Group, ncw
compnsing of sx operating businesses. Our

residental businesses, Jurassic Fhre, Swish Fbre,
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Giganet and Alpoints Fibre are building u.rafast
‘fiore to the premises” broadband nevworks in
regions of the UK which have beer overloo<ed by
larger operaters. Gganet provides connectivity 1o
homes and busingsses across the UK usirg CityFiore
and Operreach infrastructure and Vitrifi s a software
developrment cormpany whizh has developed
proprictary software to allow Internat Service

Prov ders to sell connectivity over wholesale enabied
netwarks, inclucing Allpoints Fibre Vorposs s the
UK's cnly dedicated
on providing conmeciivity 1o Dusiness

ef\terraflse finre network o focus
s Londorn

In the year, owr residertal fibre businesses
contineed o invest capital in expancing the
netwaerks in the Jome Courtes, the Soutn anc

Southwest of England, and are now onaoarding

customers Lo their networks, generaung recu ring

evenues for the Group Our state-cf-the-art
networks are able to meet customer demand ‘or
higher broadband speads required as a result of
more working-rom-nome ard ncreased usage ©

rvices. In London, Yorboss has

video-cn-derrand se
alzo continued to tuid and has installed over

500%m of fbre w iha commitment to offer 10GEps
fibre to up w0 15000 busnesses in Central London

oy 2027

Wralst cur fbre dwis o~ remans ir a growt shas
for the
an accounting nroft.

mext 5-5 years we do not expect 1o report

Towards the ernd of the year, we added a new
property developer to tre Group, wih the acgusition
of Elivia Hornes ["Elvia"} “or £85m, Bivig is ar
establishec hous

far

uilder developing mid-market

vy homeas in Lordon commuter towns ard
ages While s represerts a very sral part of thig
Croup, we piar o grow it 1n a measured way over
2ars Wit 4N uinmate target 1o deliver
g 260 hrgh quality
vVig nas a 3Urong existing

affordabie rorres, F
ki

leaciershup ez who are key 'o runnng tre pusiness
2 H vl g

Inflation and Interest rates
The higner rate of mflaton experenced this year

has oeen resporsivle for somre o the
outpericrmance aganst expectations in the
Company's share price HM \T"—"dSJU’ forecact that

high inflatior s L kely o be present 4 a
result we expect o receive more revenue for the
energy generated witnin cur energy d vision, ana

higner value from the government subsid.as tnat
peneht rom n

some of our energy sit

£5 Cressing
of those sites, Howaver, a short pericy of

tfi\g vd J.’—‘l
high inflation such as forecast has very little effect
on the rate at which the Group is expeced o grow

Trug 15 because e renewable energy 5165 We own

derve ther value from discountes progcted “uture
ected to
ifthe

ere i Crease, the

cashitlows cver the time they are exp

operate for, typically 20 years or more
outoox for i,ongfnerm irflation w
impact on our share pr.ce should be pesitve

of our

because - woud increase the reverue each

sites woud expect (o make, in conrastto a

relatively fixed cost base.

The expected rise 1r mteres: rates 5 forecast to

returr to rorma. after a sigihcart perod oF very

low rates. The im finis on our
bus
our Group s
experience sign hcant value

rmediate impact o

ed to be proadly neutral si-ce
nentioraily structured 50 87 NGOt G
erGsion when interest
rates change We contirue to take a2 caul.ous

approack witric our lending business where tre

rising interest rates are felt more closely, and w

M

have the ability (0 reduce the numper of lcars
we write, or alter the rick profile o our loans

trrough reducirg loan w vaiue ralios or pausing
activity N certann

fee. appropiate

rparis of the market showd that

i
1
i
i
i
i
i
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and outlook

Snee the year end. the Group has contimued to
perform sweadly fromr an ooerational perspactive
and i lme with our expectations albeit we nave
seer share ornice growtr ahead of target due 1o the
continued increaze miong term energy prnice
forecasts. Qur growth targets for the Group over
the megiurm and .ong term remain uncharnged, and
we cortinue to focus on maintanirg a diversifed
business that is capable of detvering more
predictsbie growth for sharehcigers

The receritly arncunced Electncity Gererator Levy
BGU wethin the 2023 Finance Bill, will have an
impac: on tre returns generated frorm aur energy
portiolo over the next 5 years, Tnis is further
discussed 0 the grous finance review or page 27

Cur progerty lending business co~tries o
perform strongly, w.th increased deploymeant in this
sector snce the year end We fecus on short terrm
loars (our average cuarrent loan term s 17 months;
which enables us to adact 1o charges in cutloox
swiftly, we feel this s particularly important in the
current econom- chimate.

Performance in our healthcare division contingas
o oe stable, and we continue to rerrain positve
about the opporturities foimprove performance in
this secior

Since year end, we have centinued 10 buld cdut our
fibre natwarks, wih construciion fracking n line
with our expectalions We contmiue o review
oRporuniies for both organic ang irerganic
growth suoporting our ex stng managemeant fearns

i+ delivering this srategy

fr December 2022 we have acquired the raghts o
£25m of rght to use mobile Jcenses fror Trree
UK. thus making the first step tawards becoming an

mogcile virtual retwork aperator,

Oar i of business areas nas developed cver ime
and may evolve furtner aver the years aheag, dnven
by the overarch ng importance we place on
meeting the obiectives of our shareholders This
should not be read as ary indw<calion of a wholesale
change ir tre sectors in which we cperate, but a5 a
refiection of the role played by the strategic
mandate 'n protectng shareholders’ interests,

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Tracing Lirmited (Fern’ 12 the parent company
of nearly 320 subsidiaries together the "Group”) Our
srargy,

. lendirg, filbre ard house ounding. Gver

a carefully

(Group operates acress five key areas.

reathcare

the past tweive years we nave built
diversitec group of cperatimg businesses that are
well postioned o deliver iong-term value and
predictable growth for our sharerclders

1. Energy division

We generate power from sustainable sources and
sell the energy produced eitrer directly o incustrial
comsuTers of o large networks. Many of cur
rerewable energy sites qualfy for government
Incentives, whice represent an aadiberal source of
Incomio. We have aisc ufilsed our experise n
recewsb.e encrgy to construct faciliies for sale o
oNGong operaticn At year end the Group nad

27 sites unaer consvruchion

2. Healthcare division
We provide homesz and ieisure facililies 1o our
ageny p i

provide nigh-gualty heaincare 3ervices aoross

ooulation, and private ~oipitals

operatonat sites inihe UK

3. Lending division
e lend on a short arnd medium term, securec

basis w0 & large number of prope-ty prafess cnals
We zlso orovide “rancing to enable

L aszets anc other residential ang

otrgr businese

S)
o

cormrnerciat propﬁrt\cs

4. Fibre division
We cwn and operate abre broadband natworks

ACress various areas of the UK Wa buld the
nelworks and connect them (¢ homres and

i obus resses 1o provide our custamers with uirafast
fbre broadband

5. Home building division
Curng the year, we saccessfully entered the mouse
1 build'ng sectorn, acguinng Bivia Hemes which has a
: strong rac< recora of develo

ng horresar a

sustairabie rmarcer The company 1S a ‘uli-service
property developer, meaning it provides servicas
from the des'gr, to the eng neerng and then final

I oconstruction to ensure the delivery of quality

toworkmanshiip

Solar, wind, ) .
biomass, Property lending, . Ret;remernt Ultrafast fibre Residential house
landfill Gas development villages, private broadband across buildin
gas. financing hospitals the UK 9

reserve power

Constrarnmn Dporatiscon Constuctor
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Our business at a glance

The srergth of our Groug's strategy 1s ir both its
operatonal diversity and the return profile of these
busnesses Our lendmg business pravides flexbinity
and strong returng over the shiort term, while our
energy, nealthcare, fibre and home buidng
dvisions offer v siol oy and stalylity of returns over

the .onge” term.

The scae of wur business is a2 key strengfh, erabting

us 1o acquire large-scale established operations as
well 25 the apoortunity to enter new sectors with
minimal rns< o the whaole Groun by selecting

Sector split’

Wind 22% — .

Solar 20%

Reserve power 6% —

B B Owning and operating assets 69%
M8 Lending 31%

Other 3% 7

Fern's sector
allocation

ousinesses with comprefensive business pians and

rong management teams. This enables us w

%]

continue 1o giversfy cur business without
compromising on the guality of our operations.
Over the past three vears, wo have successiully
ercered the Abre broadband cector and we ncw
oW SX Comparies with exciing mans o deliver

uitrafast broadband across the UK

-Healtncare £3%

— Property 27%

£ - Reserve power 2%
—-Solar 1%

v Fire 5%
- - Healthizare 434

- Landfll gas and tiomass 9%

Sector splitis g vern by value, as represented on the company ba.ance sheet of Fern Trading Limited.
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Where we operate

We are proud hat the pusines:ies

within cur Group make a positive

contribution to tociety, from

gerierating clean erergy to the . /\,,
creation of homeas and the provisiaon

a
of auality healthcare nfrastructure, ‘ , ' ,}\

ity

Totnd )‘\

Lanahil gas facivties

Hiomass power stations

OB E @«

-
=

T
&3
=
T
3
4]
—
=
O
=
-~
(%3]

As we've grawn our expertse inthese setiors in the U<, we've been atle to uss our industry xnowledge o

be
ake our expertse (o exciting opRortun fes gverseas, iNCuting CoNnsSTructing so.ar ans wind farms in

P

Austraua, Trance, ireland, Pcland and Finlans
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Our business at a glance

Malking e Hifersnese

We are proud to operae a Group thiat ma-<es a
nozitive contrinution to scoiety across the UK,
qualy
reathcare infrastructure and retirernent ivng aro

generalirg renewasle energy, providing
celiverng high-spesd troadband to uinderserved
areas of e country.

Energy

We currently own 220 energy siies, producing

3 75CW a year That's encagh energy 1o power over
ami-cr hames

Qur compirat'or of tecanclogies soarn wnd,
reserve cower, bioraass ard lardhil gas
compiernert each ot~ar well, heising the L¥ 0

meet {3 energy largels rresgectve of the weather

The Fern Commrunity Fura s a sccial ernerprise run
Sy the Grous, waich works 1o distribute cormnmun ty
funds generated from our w ng farms. This year,
Fern Community Func has awarded L1 ¢m 1c oca!
s, supported 13 local university
studerits tmrough our Student Scholarship Fund,

CcommMunity groun

and provided a winter fuel subsidy to 706 residents
wro are local to the Group's assets,

Healthcare
Cur retrement villages provide h-gn-guality,
contempaorary lving spaces, with 379

accommadation Jnis currently in pace, and
schemes in varicus stages of development offering

over 500 additional accommodation units

A friendly comarunity is at the heart of cur
retirement villages, which s wny in our
davelopmerts we grovide central facilties and &
Ll of social activity “or our residents.

Lending

The loans we made during the year have heipea to
fund the construction of studert accornmodation
and much needec rezidential properties.

ot TN
s s

We continue to exterd cans to 24 tax drivers and

fleets to enable therry to use electric vehicles,

reducing carbon erissions in our cacital

Fibre
Througrs our fipre dvison we are building out the
fiore ootic broadbard network acros: tre LK Four

of our mianagement teams are focus

sed on

buillding out Fore ophic broadband nemwaorks for
residential customers and smsll b
fifth is cwlding a Hbre ~el
ur sikthis a sefiware development

Jusinesses, ard a
work 1o delver enterprise
connect:wty, O
company operatng ir the fitre sector and
prowd‘hg services Lo Qur Group cormonanias,

e
8]
Q
n
o
=
]
o

Wathir tris d vision wea Fave plans e
network grovidmg connec
' Ehe mext thrag ye

Uyity 1o over orneg miliicn
properses ars, many of which
are in smal towrs arnd vilages that con't currently
have access tointerret cornechivity fic for modern

ways of working and comrnunicating.

sar fiore b
underservad commurities, they are

Not only are © susinesses brirging
connectivity to
alz0 gereratng employrent cpportunities for
young indreduals via train ng academies and
apprenticeship schemes, and are driving diversity in
Telecomsz, with cne of cur companies having
faunched a numper of inbiatives 1o recruit women
Nte tre secior,

Home building

Cur home b lding division utili ah'gh
proportion of sustamable tmber frame construction
rmethods and instal.s arr source heat pumps in al
propert'es, leading the way 10 this sector and
nelping reduce carbon ermissions.
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Our strategy in focus

Oy Businesses

Energy 1 generated higrer «2turns this year than expecledd
Trrouga our erergy division, the Group owns and due to rrarket condittons but crucially it hes the
cperates energy stes wrich supply gas and potental to provide stabee returrs over the [ong-
elecimncly into the nevyork, a3 well as constry Poterm, This compinat on is key 1o ous strategy ©
rerewzhie energy sites for future zale. Of the 220 balance risk and return aoross tne range of Group

ensrgy sites that we own and operate, 184 provide activities 1o generate target returns for snareholoers.

z

reﬁewab-.e erergy, contriputing to the Group's

pasiton as ane of the 1a—'gest producers of ! "Our energy sites generated over

recewsahle energy from comrrercial scaie solar sites ! "
r the UK. Energy sites are typicaiy expectad to 3,750 GWh of power.
generate stabie profits for many years, as such Due to the high-Gua.ty energy sies wa own, we
owning ard operating these busingsses is atractive | gre agle 1o secure lorg-rerm financing frorr
w0 ne Group because of their potential to deliver § arstresm barks 4t competiye rates 1o ennance

fis over the long e Doour roturns, wihich Relps us o coliver the level of

Rersewab{c o sites gerarate power from ¢ orefurne our srarelr olders £xoec

sustaTanie sources and sell energy oroduced either | whie our renewsble energy busiress started lifa ir

d”ecw ‘0 farge industnial consumers or to the tre soiar energy sector, the Group ras tudt

network. Mary of our renewable enargy sites alsc exsertise across otner adjacent technologies

qualfy for governmertincentives, wh oh resulis in a FciLd ne onskere wind clomass and landfil gac

iy L eOWING, ds,

porion of the generated energy beneilirg from Lpported by reserve power plarts which rurovldg
rates that are locked ' for @ spachiec period once  § packup power tethe Natonal Gria Tne Group

a cualifying s @ s operational and accredtation has

1 tnerefoe benefts from dversication vatnin this
beer: granted. Thsras redaced some of e impact L gar of its nuzimess, since weaker caonditions for

o L0

of the volati ty i long-ferm enargy price forecasis | anergy producton from ore techrology ofter resdlt
As new sites Built in the UK ao not guabfy for

=
1
O
O
W
[+]
i
o
=
o
&
<
=]
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i
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a
<
(]
o
%
&

historic goverm‘ﬁ&”ﬁt NCETIVES, WE 3re seging rmiore Cans SQ'JW Acan® oenedt frorm its scae ir ks sec
interest ' the market for sits :

G
Q

ioas our business < spread aCross ove” 223 sites,
and opearate ‘afty reducing the nsk 1o Cro ip proatat

<

Cwing and ooeratng energy sites s & core part of ¢ e suffers an operatioral disrupt on
our strategy and current'y rrakes up aimost 6u% of

£

the Group's not assets, This nart of our Grour has

Did vou know?
If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

ur UK sites, the G
isdict.ons th

Inaddtionto o

stes overseas,
2D

oup s deveiopng
L we Lnderstand
well, These prese m an attractive oppartunity as they
puiid on cur sector expertise \n countnes at an
earlier stage of ranewaie development -Curreretzy
we operae wind farrs in reland ard France a:
sclar sites In France ard Australia We have seve ral
vind sites under construction 'n Poland, France

anc Austraia

Euring tme year we acauired nine reserve power

plarts and one energy from waste site. Following

construction, we sold two wing farmis in Fintand and

shorily after the year end we also sold Darongton

Foint, a Aargé solar e Australiz

Healthcare

Through our nealthcare division, t2e Group
operates 0 e privae redical and retirement Living
MEnt l'vmg business, Range‘wrd,
retirement viliages in

sectors. Our retre
owns ard cperates tw
Wiltsrire ard hortn Yorkshire and s currently

develowrg three further sites for future operatons

Cur private medical business, One Healthcar
ard operates two private nospitals in Kent and
Hertfordshire, providing the very hest ey
in modern, well equipped hesprtal facilities

re Owrs

vel of care

Since returning to normal waorking patterns we have

SEEr an |

crease in the numtber of patents payirg
for their own treaiment as thay face iong waiting
lists for NHS treatmert Despite the lfting of
widespread s the UK Covid-19
continues 1o af'ect the acute care sector with a
stressed MNHS and incressed infection control

restrict.ons acros

megsures that remain in g.ace.

Lending
Lending continues @ be a core part of our bLsness
and has provided the Grouo with a profitacle ard
cash generative secior over the past twelve yaars,
eli-ezlablished part of our Grouo mamnly
of property lending, which proy des
short-term financing o experienced prafessional
croperty deveopers, buy-te-let ianclords seeking
bricging Priance, and develcoment fFnancing,
wrich proviaes short and medium term finanaing
o comoanies

A key penefit of the scale of our Group and of the
ousiNess that we have bail up in this secior s cur
abilty 1o rmitigate nsk througn having 2 large
~umber of short and medium term lcans spread
cross small projects to individual borrowers. We
v manage counterparty rnisks through
ndertaging careful borrower due drigence, taking

"Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provide
sith a profitable

the Group

and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




Our strategy in focus

cecurity over assets typca.y o0 & lrst C!ﬂa"]"\ bas:s
< ¥ ¥
value ratioz

trese

and maintaining conservative loan-to-
Mot all leans will perform as expectad and
measuraz help to minimise the impact <f

[oan. Ths:s

perfermance issues on an indrmidua’

further mitigatec through the value that we leng
ndrvsdual borrowers, retstive to our wial loan book,
which is currently spread on average across 182

loanz, with an average maowidual loar of £2.2m.

Fibre division
Crar hibre division inciudes Sve operational
the

companes building fibre natwao ks N the UK ana
one software development caompany.
Through our res de~tal Fire businesses, we are

bullding new ohiysical fibre networks for

communities in the UK and so far have built out

fibre INfrastructure in wnderse-ved parts of Devor,

somerset, Dorset, Wittsrire, Hampohire,

Waorcestershre and the Home Counies, We are
q to pass aver gne milion homes over tre

three years

W

Building tnese large notwors nvoives Connectin

large datgcentres ang telephone exchanges » ihe
UK with homes and businessas, effectively
replacng the coprer wires that were laid in the frat
haif of the 20th century Jurassic, swish ang
egrated, as t
rd atag nave the eng

the internet service

Ciganet are verticaly Int tney both own
the

cusiarmer rela

Gre nfrastrucinre 3

qonshin as

provider or “ISP" Allpcints owns fibre infrastructure
and will onboard cther I1SPs to the Aligoints nebwark

end custemer,

to sell connectivty 10 the

v

Through vorooss, we are

ondon o

oulhd ng a network N

{

supply business—o-business '8227

enrergrise connectivity drect o busim

cusnrrers Vorhoss Pas instated over 500k of
Fbre opuc

recenily laurncned a sing.e 10Ghos procuct o

caies n Lordon since 2020 2nd has
markel recognang that ameoiticus London
busresses will quickly require more than the 1GEps

connectivity they've relied or 1o date

We have seen rap ¢ growih in our fibre division
since 2018 and we expect ths division o continue
to become a larger oart of our bus.ness over Ume,
The Group expects 10 spend aoproxmately £1bn of

capital by 2025 o fulhlits build plans and reacn
maore communiies in need of ult-afact troadband

Home building
Our naw home puilding business, Blivia is a ful
service housepulasr, acqunng

iand, develop ng e
ana subsecuently seling the homes to

ndwv dual buyers

ste,

nclude 3 mx of cpen

marxe: and affordable houses ard strive 1o delver
hrgh cuality aspiratonal horres The tus‘ 5515

growing fast wis ected armual turmover of

E250m and 600 houses built per year forecasted

VIt o ine rext 2-3 years
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
ousiness activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Lathaw
Paul i= Chef Executive of Ferm and s responsiole for the day-io-day running of the
business. He is also a managing director of Octopus Investiments Limitea {017,
where ha ~as worked snce 2005 & 15 8 key sippiier of resource and expertise

o Fern Paul’s dual role ensures thar this relatonship works effectively and in the
oestinterests of Farr's sharehnloers Paul nas had varicus general management
and interral consulting roles acress a number of sectors and brngs with him
a wezalth of industy and busiress experience

- Heith Willey >0 Fem v Ui e
A

Heth is an associate prafessor of strategy anc enirepreneurship at London
Bus:iness School He ale0 ho.ds varnous non-executive directorships and advisory
roles at hign growtn and mare matdre comparies. 10 s role as ron-execuiive
chairman re is respons ble for the effective operaticn ©f the Board, as well
as its governance He brninge to the rern busingss ndependent commercial
experience gaineg from his e in academia, private ecuity investment,
consulting and varnous hands-on ogerational roles.

Petar Barlow o o0 o0 s
Peter Fas over 30 years experence in internaticonal inarcirig of infrastructure and eneray,
As a senior execltive for International Power, Peter was responsible for arrarging ove”
S12bn of project and corporate funding, as well as bankirg relabionships and treasury
activities He nas spent over 20 years working internationaily for HSEC, Bank of

Amerca and Novurg, financing acguisitons and greenfield pro'eﬁq in the erergy

and infrastructure sectors. His combination of Board- l@ el financing and erergy

-—:

experence over numerous energy sub-seciors, ang his all-round «xnowledge of
all the sectors in which Fern operates, acds significan: value to the operation of
the Board as well as s strategy forrmation and deployment,

Tim Arthar .0 ool

Timois a chartered accountant w'th more than 25 years' mternatonal expanerce

as a finance cirector of both punlic and private companies iniually he worke

for Price Waterhouse in Birringham and Chicago. More recently ne was Chel
Financial Offcer of Ligntsource Renewable Energy utd, @ g.obal leader in the

furcirg, development and long-term cperation of sciar chotovaltaic progects.

Tim brings extensive financigl and accountancy knowledge w0 the Board as
well 25 an understanding of dynamic technology businesses gained from his

r

executive poshons




Principal risks and uncertainties

Brincipal visks
Maragement ideniify, &
ascociated with the Grour's busines

s5ess and marnage nisks

s obectves and
strateqy Risks anse from external sources, thoss
wh ch arz inherent cormmerzia risks in the marxer,
and from operat onal 7 oks contaired withun the
sysiems and processes empioyad within the
buwr =55 Cverall risk exposure is managed across
tme Group througn the dversific

both by sector and gecgraphy.

ation of activities,

prinCpa. risks that
are descr-bed below, alcng

ve take to *Odu’f— rhp o]

'<<

Ve also inc

or rerwained the same

lLde oL 35857

the Group are expcsad to

g witn 1ne mitigating
antial impact of
srnert of wnetner
ood of the nsk has wereased, cecreaced

Risk Mltlgatlons
Market rlsk . Coq:racts are erwtercd N wrich Fx the income ‘or a

The energy sector 13 expenencing

a ris< that forecast levels of 1 ne n ol
are not ach.eved due to charges in

whiolesale energy prices, off-take

Cue =0 ths turbulent environment,
trie potential for increased
ateryenton by the regulatorn s aise
arick

Cranges in Govarnment polic
may esult in reduced rc*r.e
streamis vy thr the group due to
addmr“r’a‘ 'P“\c:

Operatlonai rlsk .
Levels of energy preduced may

sub-cptimal weather condir ons are <ept in
or performance issues with asse
equipment, which may rezult in
squanr 'rpg*med d wrft\rre

Financial ﬂsk .
Reverues {rrom energy
cmﬂah 2 Gr S

frr@-gﬂ exchange raes

Constructlon risk: « Tre Groop ent
Consucton o
Grges or 5 more Costly thar
art'cipated due to rescurce
ava lab-lty orincreased cost ©

fhe sres takes

Flectncity Markets "O7GEM o
with poiicy makers who set future

diversificgtion of techinglogies 21d o
pe ‘cwer tnan anticipaed due tc » Regular servicing of asseis s und

ts are unavatlable

ars fixed price coe
whiere approorate o raduce ex

coron of the energy gererated by Gur sites.
sigrifcant tirculence and there is « Lorig-term government ba

acked offtake agreermens are

requlatony requrenents,

f\prtf‘ ctabilty of e w»ﬂatfmr is mitgaed through
CElUon of stes
erta<en to ensure ass
good condiren ard mimimnise the risk thar
for a onger percd

Contractors
; DCS-,H"S G increas rg costs

e, such as ihe Renewable Ooligatior Certhcation
("ROCT schene 30% of our energy ircore was
gereraieg frorn ROC revenue

contracis or goveramen: subtidies « We engage with ine goveniment and e Office o Gas and
contrbute 1o an Industry voice

i3

%

lncre
[due to me
irstabil-ty

)

f* & e
*’T

S
fo

NO cnange

$

ncreased (due
ro volatile FX
rrove™MIentii
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Market rlsk

Expected sales from CLStOMErs
are lower than arns cpated due to
ncreased compeuton fror other

Drovigers

A Change n poacy Of fne
reguiators in favou” o Erger
cperaiors coud mpact our abiity
to deliver pranned developrnent,
reducing reveniues and efficiencies
gainec from a largar DIesence N a
partic ula'area

Constructlon rlsk
Cersteaclion of the netwaork
takes longer or s more CCitly
than ant'cipated due 1o rescurce
avallability o° rreases
raw maternas

cost of

Operational risk:

Metwork service s nerructed ©
ng O pot
of customers and reputa:iorfat
dama =

unrehanle leadt

i

E‘ﬁ&\

zg S

freaM et
St

Py
g
5 Ferd:

Change

scaps
< not confl 2hwith

Mitigations

« Managemert reguiariy reviews the comaet:tive lan
in target ouild areas to ersure plans d
otner alternative rebwerk oparaiars

« Managereriengages orcactively wit™ the Office of
Communicatons and the Government to ensJre the
berefits of smaller cperators are well uncearstond and its

rG anpropriatey regresented due ;

. Weare an ECtiue participant 1n relevant industry sodies, ’Cr’if';p[f‘ﬂtrz:tp

a iy those representing slternauve network

Ifiterest

operatnrs

o The Group has cortraciec with s numoer of different
sunpeers o reduce the exposure (o any one indrecusl
entity, Selechor of outsource partiners 55 managec Increased (due
thrcugh 2 geailed procurer-ent process wih long tarm ta) ir Creasing
Y ‘ emand for
seleyd b etk allowir o Garteere NES e T
visioit ty of work allowing parirers to plan financiat 30d resoUICE In
pEeODiE resources accord gly. the sector as
- Where supply chain oroblems are oxoccted for Uit ca.

1

alternat.ve

P - . £ s el of Epre netwerk
tterns our tams generally have & months stock of fore, providers scale
duct and other matenia.s on hard, and advance order Gl
ter*%r T3 'Ipm Sl v-‘Ii" ng Iead nmes.
« Our networks are bu\lt n aresilent way with diverse
route aptions should s failure occur in one route. s
SRR

This, combimed with an aoility to dentify and resove
conrecivity i55Les quICKly, mnirmises downume of the
nanworks.

S ix»snx(s‘u:b 5
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mitigations
Market risk: « Tne tearns pro-actively manage our posizon in the

rnarketplace and are prepared to enforce where needed If
zan maoves into default

i loans are made at conservati
103wl a maximum LTV of 70%

Increasing inflation and rterast
rates lead to a market-wide a
affcrdso:lty ssue, resltnigin g * O
drop in property values across ali
sectors cf real estate. 1 Nis may

gactcur ablly to recover 3
loar m full through a refinance
cr cat&

ve ioan-to-value LIy E]
o

No change

¢
21
M|

Counterparty risk: o Loans are secured cal underying s
Loans rmay be made © ansuiabls such as a charge over tke praperty or sther assets of the
counigrpartics, :migathing « Lorrower, These are tymcally ¢ & first charge bazis @
auilty to recover tha loan bal ENSLrE TIXIMumM chaﬁce of recovery should enforcement %
r: full acton be nesae
= Thorough due dtlmﬂ"m 15 perforred prnior o wniing
wans, imcluding property or land valuations and credit
checks done on borrowers. climate)
« \Wnere oars are written for assets undoer constraction
rilestones and covenanis are put in olace to ensure
aTa"““ are C”)mpi“'e or.or to releas ng further drawdow

. ualttmarel !-lome Bm‘idlng Divisions

Risk Mttigatlons

Market risk {(Healthcare and « Flanning consents on undevelooed lan

Home Building): “aximise revenu uce the nsk o,

A fall i house prices could LR

, ; shiiby e OEMEFaTE ncreased (due
meact our aility to genarate o unstable
expecten revende from the sgie ecoronic
of agartments in our retirernent clirmate]

vitiages ang houses pult by Elivia.

Construction risk (Heatthcare + The Groap enters fixed orice contracts \.f\,hﬂrp anproorate
and Home Buildingh to rediuce exposure to increasing matenal costs. —
Constiruct on takes lGNger or « The Groun ony works witn reputzable 3rd parces with g o
$ rmore costy thar anucpsted strong track record of deliverng simiar projects. No change
dug o rescurce availanibuy or
ncreased cost of raw :
Health and Safetyrlsk « The Gronp mar-ta nz robust ochcies and procecsures
{Healthcare): ratatng to the provis on of ~edical services We rev ew this
Trie prevention of njuTy Cr trro ugh conductirg regutar internal .nsgectons, ang @re
avoidabie loss of uie of our 150 € bJeFt G external nspections by regulstory bodies -
caterts .5 of utmost imporianc « Tne Groag has nsurance polhioes in place to cover e
rd s cntical to mariainirg a ﬁnanciaf ;osses due to rmedical ma.pracuce claims Mo chatga

a
good reputat.on. Lwtgaﬂom as
r of mejfa alpractice
e dama ‘eto
mcma:ﬂd Costs

]
i
i
H
i
i
i
i
H
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Mitigations

Market risk: « ‘Wnere doating rate debt s in place where irtarest vanss

Anincrease in base rates may in ling with an urcerlying penchmark -atel. the Groug

increase costs on cett facdilties, enters iNto hedging asrangements to fix a portion of these Icreased

rmpact g the Groao's abildy o payrments throughout e term of the facil.ty Hedging (duatcrseir

service debt as it faus due. arrangemens are cutlhred ir Note 21 of the financisl Interest rates)
slaterments

Liquidity risk: « A detaled cash flow forecast = pregarec and reviewead

Poor managemert of casn within by maragement on @ monthly bass, incorporating cash

the Croup could impact the avallabiriy ang cash reguirement s across ne Croup, On at

Group's abslity to neer obligatcns least 3 quarteriy bais this 15 sharea with the Board

as ey fall due « The Group monitors bark covanarts o0 an ongong bass e

to ensure conunued adnereras to Coverants Wnere
covenanis can't be met, forecasts are updated for the
lower cash avaiable as 3 result of the reztriction.

+ The Group hias a flexite Snance faciny which <an oz
drawn on at shor: notice to meer mmedaiate business

NG charge

reeds.
Health and Safety risk: = We have geve.oped robust heaih and safety pouties i
Tre safety of cur emp.oyees compuance with [SO25001 across the Group to ensure
and thoie employed through: the wel-being of cur staff %
centracts are of paramaoun: « Fealth and safety traivng is provides 1o our staf and
mmportance There s a ns< that cortractors or a reguiar bass. ncreased

acc derts n the workplace coutd
restlt inserous injury or death.

Cyber Security risk:

r{'Cl=07

An attack on our T systerms andd who sresponzb.e for data security across the Group and
aata coula lead to disruphion reports guarterdy to tne Board. I
of our operatons and lozs of « The CISC works ciosely with our businesses to ensure P
customer data. Loss or misase adeguate standards of security ana nformation Mo change
of data may result .0 reputatcna: maragement are me:
camage, regularory action under « Fach of cur busmnesses that nold customer data has ther

own cedicated resource for 7 and secunty

The sirategic repert was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Decenber 2022 and signed on 115 benall oy

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

B 5§Q!§!% L vI ! v




Corporate governance

Section 172 (1) stetement

me Board consider that they have ad-ered o the
requirements of sechion 172 of the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act’), and have in good faith, acted in a
way that would be most likely 10 promore the
s miembers
{having regard to all Stakeﬁo:ders ard
Lin section L7240 a-f) of the Act)
in the decisions taken auring the year ended
20 June 2022

success of the Group for the beneht ¢
as a whols
maltiers set ou

In the perfermance of 1ts duty (© promaote the

success of the Groun, the Board nas regara w a
number of maters, mclqdmg the likely
consequence of any dedisions in the .ong term, and

liztens to ine v ews of the Group's k

oy stakehoiders
w buld rust and ensure it fully understacds the

poterntia makes Tre
Eoard fulh

Cormit

#mipacts o the decisions 't

e tese dutes partly by delegaton o
and the bea
ndertakings, who ope

€

W

rds of suosid ary
‘ate witnin a corposate
£

goverrance faamework across the Group

At every Board rmeeting a review o health ang
safery acrois the qroup, financie and operanoral
perferrarce, as weil a3 legat and regulatery
compliance, 's undertacen. The Board alss review
other areas over the course of the frar
irciuding the Greup's business

takehocder-2lated ma

1CI1E. year
wategy <&y risks,

trers, diversity and moiLsviny,
environmeartat mattors, corporate responsisiity, and

governance, canrpliance and ‘'egal matters.

Principal decisions
We defne prncipal cecisions taken by the Soard ag
thiat are sigmihican: o ary of our k~v stak
Groups. The Board conzicer that The fo

examp.es of an-cipal deciscrs 't made

enced 30 June 2022

» Evaluatrg and cecid

_j
iy
o
(o]
Q
B
1]
R
]
[wi)
o
=
3

ncreasing wird cperatiors, whicr 1€ part of

our remewabies dv sen. n August ¢

Group acquired a large scale, ready 10 construc

wind site in Australa Tris deploymen? aigrs
with the Croup's strat

develop rerewable energy sites wh.ch grovids

egy 10 conurue o

prad-ctagle long-term revende streams. T he
Soard consgicerad the opporiunity anc how it
aligned with cur obectves to make a posit ve

ontribution G the corymunity and environment.

The Group decded 1o expand into our newsast
division, house buildimg. in May 2022 the Groun
acqured Elivia homes, a ful'-service property

developer, providiry serv ces
to tre eng'neenrg and then final constrict on

frorm the gesgn,

to ensure the delivery of guaity work™manship

Diversifying the Group's asse!t nase ang entenng
intz this new secicr has been well thoughs

he Board
snities within tre

cut with long term growih in mne. T
strategic opport

secior before deciding o move ahicad with this

gzsessed the

acquesition, considenng how this woula impadct

existing businesses within the divs on and now

it alignes with the Group's stategic objectives (o
deliver long-rerr vawue and predictanle growh

b

‘o aur sharehsiders,

Reviewing and decidng to move anead with

‘ncreasing biramass operations which is part of

our renawabigs Qivis 0. N Qorobar 2577 the

Groug acquiced a lerge scale was e-10-energy
construct or sten Scotand Tris deptoymem
aligns with the Group's stralegy 1o cortnue 1o
diversify the Group, develop renewaste energy
sites which provide pred clabe
revenLe strears, and provide resilience aganst

onc term

wholesaie prong char:ges ring LK energy

rar<et The Esar ty

orsicered the onportun:

dc
ans tow b algned with our ahjeciives o

make a oosit ve contributior to the cormrmun ty
and envronment

i
!
!
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Corporate governance

+ The bosra decded to change augit Nirms via a
tendger process for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Tre Group had changed significantly since the
orevicus auditors wers apgorted ard therefore
e value for

= frms undenaweant

wie were unable to reliaby assess tf
Thr

the tenger process and Errst & Young LLP v

maoney we rece ved
pere
selected because of the'r strong commercial
 efficie
methocology and value for money,

LNGeErstanamng Of i husiness Nt 2udit

Business strategy

Qvur busimess strameqgy is set odt on pages 11 w 1£ of
the Strategi: Report Maﬂagc ent prepares a
detailed Group cudget whCh s approved Ly the
Board on ar annual oasis and forms tne basis for

the Group's rescurce planning and deployment
C:5
busness plan, the Beard has regard first anc

frorermrost to it strategic ‘ccus, but also to other
ratters
stakeholders and the tang-term impact of
actions

decisions. Ir msking dec:31ors Concern.ng he

sJon as the interssis of its vanous

15

on tne Group's future and reputation.

Shareholders
Snareholaer relations ard generating sharehoiger
va.ue s >nowhen the Board 12
rraking
whicn the Group com
i through the annual rep
statemerts, which aim
a fuli ung of the
results This information is publisned on our website
at www.ferntrading.com

a Kkey considergtc
sirategic decisions. The pnme

r.cates with sharehciders
ort and firancial

medium by
I

Ko

provide sharehoders with

erstanding Group's actvities and its

Employees
The Group's ernployees 3
overall success of the busim

re fundamental (o the

The Directors fulfil
their duty 1o employees by entrusting oversight
Chief Executive of the

ess,
sLis.dary Boards which the ¢
Groue also sits on.

The drectcrs of the sabsidhary unaertakirgs
manage the day 10 day decision making,
engagement and cormmunicatons with employees

ard ensure that pecple are treated fairly ard are

valued with respect fo pay, benefit end conditions.
We fully «ealise that our employees wish to be
informed and consualted an matters affecting thayr
work and o be invoved in problem-solving
areas of Interest ard
respons Dility The Group is firmyy comnrritied
policy of goo

arn to estaklsh 2 © wanidy

encourages the open flow of information and

affectng therr awn
o &
and we

d commurnicaron at all avels

lmate which corg
ideas Presently this includes monthy team b
the publication of rmonthly key
g

riefings
z local level and
rdicators covering odtput, cperatin
cosis, and heatth ard safely

performance

The healih and sa‘ety of our employees in the
workp ace is a contnual f‘ocus for the Group, giver
s broad operationat business. The Diectors review

Healih & Safety Reporurg at each board meeting 1o
BrsJre appropnate policies and proc

=ty of our

adures are in
place te protect the heailn ard safe
ernp
cotenfial deficiencies Cr 1Ssues,
timely bas s, with the Board
of the actions taker.

woyees a~d contraciors, Where (nere are
these are fotlowed
up and resolved on a

Faving oversight

The Group cutsources actvit'es and managermeri

of certain operaticnal activit.es (G external suppliers.
Where activities are cutsourced the Board ensures

that they are rmanaged by reputatle suppliers who
meet all the reievant industry ard regulatory

commitrents as well as treaing empioyees fairly

Expected standards are documeniad in all service
contracts and adherence o these are cwuwualty

maonitored by Board through their
agreement with Octopus Imvestments amied,

rw

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with all suppliers
and seeks to mantain strong
achieved

and custamers
susiness relationships witn them Thisis
by all contracts Leing negotz
tranzsparent tender process which inciudes
essing tne impact on the long-ferm

ted through a fair and

ass opjeciives of

e 8

o

Ty
-
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Corporate governance

the Group We review our payment Brocess ng
times against Contracts every six raonihs to ersure
suppliers are paid promp:ly and this information for
tne cecmpany 15 availabe ¢n the www.gov.uk
website

Tre Group ensures i acts f2rly and i a transparent
manner to all customers across all dvisions ard

services, and aciively engages 10 resalve any disputes

or defaults, The Board ciosely monitors custormer
metrics and engages wits the manzagerment team 1

underst theissues if business perfermance does

noumest custamers’ expcctatwor!s
The Bo
to be a key business partner an

zrc considers Qctopus Investrments Limited
G suoplier with
responaibility for the nrovsion of operationa:
oversignt, arancal administrauon and compan

secretaria services,

Community and environment

The provision and aperation of sustainabwe

irfrastructure s at tre cenwe of the Crouo's
strateqic goals Trrough |
Group seexs o make a pos

(5 business achvities the
sitive cortnibution to the
community, envronment and economy Our
rerewable energy business 15 helping the
its renewabie ensrgy targ
have supoorted the MNHS througrout the Covia-19
sandemic r‘y providing wreatment for ron-Covid-1G
NHS patients

UK meet
ete, our private hospita.s

o

that otherwise could Not have been

carried cut, and cur filbre netwerk wild give pecole

s orural communitieg access to hige-soeed
broadoanc
Business conduct

s Oirectors our nieuon 1S 10 Genave resoor:ity.
ersunng Manageriest operae the business wih

integrity and 1 actordance win the righ siarcaras

of concuct 570 governancs expecied of a buziness
Leh as ours Our interton through cur business
eqy (outined on pages 1210 14)

other busne

U]

w

5 1o operate in

trat
ecors and work witrm © sses at share

tn

Jr values

Q

Business ethics and governance
Tre Board iz resconsible for ensunng thas the
activities of the Group and its vanc:

CusiNesses are
w znd

and requlatory regimes, ard
in adherence wth preva ling oest prectice for the

conducted n compuance with the law
apglcat.e governance

relevant industry. Thiz includes reviewng inernal
cortrois, ensur ng that ere is an approorate
palarice o onine

Board, anc ensunng trat tre financial staterrents

© 8kl S and eXgenence representern
give a true and far view of the stare of affars of the
Croup Further detall can be found in the staiement

o airectors responsibitities on cage Z9 In the year
o 30 Gune 2022 no areas of concern have been

fla ggedmfh regarc.

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre Board's policy on employee, human rgnrs,
socal ard community 1ssues, enviror ment policy
and anti-corruguon and oribery rmaters is aIsc

irihe Directors Report on page 29 The Board

actively promotes a corporate culiure that s based

o elh cal values and behaviours,
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Heview of fnancial statemenis

The purpose of trhis report is to provide agditional
explanatory informanon on the Inancial statements

I rigasur.ng our performance, the financial
rmeacsuras that we use include those tnat have besar
denved from our reportec resulls in order to
eliminate facrors thal distort year-on-yaar
comparisons. These are consicarad non-GAA=
finarcia. Measures.
A recomcibation of these o the financat results can

be found in note 28 of the rotes to the financial

statements

the share price anc may not reflect changes in the

fuli mar<er value of assets or businesses owred by

the Group

A number of acqustons wera mq
Cmauding nine operational rezary

aoe durng the

y ear,
a waste (o erergy site uncer construct'on,

e power sites,
2

consruction ready wind fasmin Austraua and
sevenfeen sclar roofiop sites under construction,
Shortly after the year ena, in Suly 2022, we

Darlington Point, a large s

|
SC

olar s in Austraua

To supoort cont nued expansion, we rad bu lt up

The financial statements snow assers at cost, as such cask reserves at year erd of £256m which included
they co not reflect the future value shat we expect o | a large casty infiow of £97m from placing external
derive from these businesses To fhat extent ! orefinancing n Daringicr Point oror to sale
accoarting performance may difer materully from
{restated) Movement
' 2022 2021

£'000 £ 000 £'000 %
vaem;e 711 830 425 302 236578 €7%
FPI [ DA 194 916 104 036 90,880 a87%
P'uﬁt Ur 3 oefore tax 47, 604 (22 663) 70,267 ﬁ‘O“/
Lpnd ing ook net of orovis 'oras} 360,901 385 512 (24615 f6/;
Cash 256,415 172,478 49%
Net geot 793 169 699 440 li
Net assets 2 219 448 1. 887 842 ?31 507 1.8/
Financial performance I OE425m) which was predominantly driven by a 84%

Overali, the Group has repored a profit before tax of
£4£7.6m for the year ended 30 June 26272, whichis a
£70.3m improvement or the prior year (2021

£22 7/ ioss restaec], COverall EBITDA ircreased by
87% to £195m (2028 £204m which i
primarly due to increased ener

restated],
Gy generanon as wel

as Increased energy prices

Reveriue increased by £287m to £7127 (2021

Farnings before ‘nterest, tax, depreciztion and amortisal on

increase in revenue witnin our energy division. Tris
growtn is twa fold, Increased energy generation
from having owned/operated cne o our biomass
plants far the full year and a large =clar plant in
Australia reaching cormmi
INCrease i average energy orice
to the mismatch between supply and demand,
exacerbated by the ongoirg conflict in Ukrame,

L5t

and a significant
aver the year due

on: mg
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Revenue growth weas strongest in our ernc gy
divis:on but we aiss saw a marked improverrent in
revenue from odr retrement villages Tnes par: of
our business has recounded well frorn the
lonkdowns regurec by the Covid-19 pandermic
response, seding 41 units in e year (an incre

52%) ard acs increasing ‘n revenue of £25m to
£20 4m (2021 £12.7m;.

Revenue from cur lending civision saw a drop of
25% to £42m (2021 E57rn) due to a sma
loan ock over the year as
to grow other parts of the business

average
vl

cash was made available

Operating expenses for the year were n Lne with
our expectatons, witn the increase prirmarty drver
by increaseaq operamc Costs 1IN aur fibre dvisicr as

it has expanded. Refinancng exienal dest 1o

e

secure imMproves terms gver [ne past two /’"'5 'a
decrease in inie oo ol £2 57

CEZ61m)

contributed toa
to E33.6m (20

nciuced in e resulis this year is @ profit of 228m
recogrised on the szle of two wird farms in Firland

and & reauzation of £1.6m of deferred corsigeraton

on sGiar $ies soid in previous years.

Financial position
Cortinued shareholder interest and investrrent has
een ret assets grow to £2,219m (2021 ELBEBmM

ey

June 2022 we

rectated) In the year erded 30
Issued 220 shares (2021 150m; far a total
coraderatan of £204m (2021 £2,317m) Tre

comparative year

numpers ircidce £1.992m of

consiaeraton relat: ng te grouc restruciurng

s of £808m (2021,
have ncreasaed by £

Net current gsser EGH 3 restated)
214Lm, reflecting the reducion in
exierna: ararcing ard an NCrease in work N orogress
withirt the 9bre arg kouse bu'ildi.ﬂg dvsicrs Our loan

o0k N property lencitg na
£361m (2021 £38Em). and at 20 Juns 20

regresenied 16% of ~et assets (2021 2”.:/3}

s decreased by % to

N and cash equivaierts as at 30 June 2022 were
£256m {2021 £172m) Cash generated rom

operatirg act vites decreased 1o £42m 2021
72

42m) which has been utlised a:.ongside externa:

ongfier m fnancing and canital raised by rew share
ssues o grow the business We have invested

ostantialy nto tne fire ”fadbarro‘ SeCIor over
trao past four years which will reguire further capinal
expenditure over the next 3-5 years, mcreasir:g our
aiversificaton across seciors

Cfthe cash hed at year erd, £E211m was held in

our energy, home bullding and Aore subsidlaries,
number of ©
nfrastruciure proects under way, reguiring

where there are 3 onstructor ard

cainto

be readily avai.able for <stage payments due in the

m

Goodwll, at £54'm (2021 £567m restateds,

crtinues to be a signifcant numier on the

alance sreet ard arises or the acquisition of some
pusresses Acourrec businesses, for example
renevwable energy sies. often nave a market value
inexcess of the compary's net assets, refiecting
treir relizble future 1IMcorre sireams. Accounting
cornvention reguires that only identifiatle assets are
named on the balance sheet so the accounts

cannor record e galance of the adaoitiona, marke:

va.le which compr.ses the future orots that sites
are expected o deliver. The addtional vaiue in
excess of tne value of fixed assets themselves (such

as sciar panelst is recognised as goodwil.

Put simpiy the market value of the energy

exp
profits, not the cost of simply buying tangible assets
such as solar pane.s or wind furbines, We pay

g for the

marker vel.e sdes we acgdire, which may
vaiue of identfzble assets such as the
sclar panels ard so gererates goodwi | which

the expected
Goodwill recogn sed will
graduzlly be wntier off typicaly over the life of the

SIe, 35 expecias 'errs are rea: alsed.

exceed the

assentiaily represents the valus of

future ncome srearas
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Sector performance

Energy P (2021 E196m restated;, partially driven by increased ;
As econcrus activty and globa. demand ircreazed site cosTs where £120r was incurred ar Gur ‘?
througnout tnhe year, 5o too did whotesale energy P oblomass s tes and £53m ai cUr reserve power Tites,

prices, driven by movemeanss in cormrnodily prices, the orices for raw rmaterals have nceased, on

which resulted intne overallincrease in revenue average, by 69% due to an increase in the zupply

earned acrcis odr ensrgy Sites. These marke: costs The combined cost of sales for trie reserve

factors Nave resulted in an increase 1IN revenue of i powar and biomass stes ncreased Ly £110m to

84% 10 Z0Q3m (2021 L322 EZ217 0 {2021 107m) 1L should be nociea that the
Correspondingly, EBITOA alsc increase D}’ 112% o revenue generated oy the,t\, 1ass a o reserve

E266m (2077 £126m restalen) reflec e Popower sles incre gated by £152m during The year t©

-

: POL35EAm (20210 £161m)
S goHicant INCrease :

I Sneray revanue.,

operating costs nereased py £130m to £327m
FYz2022 FYz021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
{MWh} (MWh) Availablilty Availability

3.0rans 1,050,038 BE5.555 B4.6% 83 2%
Langhll Gas 240,226 256,126 97.9% S7E%
Regerve Yower 403,355 141,086 94.2% 92.0%

Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 36.0

&

851,214 881,24‘1 90.5% 93 1%

Total 3,099,690 2 682 019
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Healthcare

Fealincare operations contributed £46m
(2025 £42m; o Groun revenues for the year
refecting the mpact of increased revenue in
Rangeford. Zales of aparurents at the retiremen:
villages have rencunded well from the iocxdowns
reguired by the Covid-19 sandem < response,
seling 41 units In e year (@0 ncrease of 52% from
2021 ane increasing revenue by £7.6m to £20 2
(2021 £12.7).

Lending
Reverue from lending decreased
(2021 £57my) priranly dus o a s

o0

y ElAm o £42m
maller average

loan book for 2022, which resulted in a decrezsed
revenue strearm for the year. The total loan bock
reducec by 6% o L2361 altne year erd (2021

£386m) This reductcr in the toan cook enasies

cash to be avallacle for opoortunities across cther

sectors yathn the Group Includmg acguistions ard

consiruction. The make-up ¢f the loan bock »

shifted slignty where we have issued a 'f‘.|ghe'

numper of smaller loans within the residentat

sactor, as well as more targer loans 11 the
n

developmen: secto d tr'e commercial secior

EBITODA for the lending diwision decreased o 2 loss

of £8 7m fromr a oroft of nearly £1m r the prior

ZErme

vear. This moverment reflects a provision of

the loan book against loans to reserve power sites
and a provision agsinzt a nealthcare loa~ of £14m.
[N e year o June 2022, £39m was o

against :0ans versus £21m in the prior year,

rovideq

Fibre

As a relatively new dwvision, al. the Fbre busnesses
are ntne buld prase and are staring to a
cusicrners o ther networks By 30 Zune 2022 the

divizicn had nels passed over 120020 nomes We

anticissie tre build stage to convrue for a fu-ther

-5 years as we expanc The fore nenworks
\hough owidng a Fore network s caoitai Intorsive

and leas 1o 3 phynical aszet on balance sheet, the

n alzo ncurs large ogerating expenses as the

sees scale thicir aperafions and develop
rmarket presence. Cverall the division reportec an
EBITOA 1oss of £52.4m {2021, £23 5 foss), which
15 N ine with exgectations ard refiecis the

devewpmental stage of the divis on

s will be
twhich
expected 1o b

£ IEDNOTKS Out, the ass
recogrised on the balance shest at cos

carnot inciude fature value which 1s

o]

gererated as the assets have besn nternally
generated. Tnis 1s dfferent to tne share
ti

: prce where

c future vaue exgected 1 be gengratad from tne

by

<5e1s 5 nciuded

@

Home building
Elvia Homes was acquired in May 2022 and has

trerefore hed Urted impact on the financ'a
perfarmance durng the year, The busness is

125
forecast to delver £78m revenue and £6 5m
ERIT DA for the year endec 30 Cune 2023 Resait
from the Rrst guarter af 20273 ndicawe th r

is broadly perforrming in ine wiih expectations,

Funding and liquidity
Or st'ategy S b secure Long—term Snancing at
conservative leyels from mansiream banks to
erihance rewrns frorm our renawable energy
bus resses. At yea” end we had £1,044m of
externat propect fnarang with £441m of

headroom avansbie

T=is erables us to sequire bus nesses tal the

Tarket congiders to have stable characterist.os such
as predictalie cost pase, ~evenue streams,

government incentives ofr proven technowwgy and as
suCh have lower returns that without leverage would
Shoent for our shigrerolders. 11 as0 ailows Us
ity o hnancirg owr busnesses ard m
flow We bel
slrategy woLlG rave a negative 'mpact or busiress

eve fihat farking m adopt this
return and stareholder vaues over the long term
Approximatey 8074 of

re

@
ard thierefore we are nat sigr'--'”-ca.“':“y exposed
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tne currert interest rate volat lity We cont nually

review firancing arrangements to ensurs tnat they
are compelliive ang optimizsed for the needs of the
business To ensure cast is maraged n an agile
sranrer, we maintan a flesble france factity
which can e drawr down of renaic o mes:

mmed ae busingss needs.

Looking ahead

Thie Groun has rebaundaed wel fram ine ertects of
the Covid-19 pandemic ard has outperformed
exgectations. WhIisT the Curent econom:z outicox
1s one of crallenge and uncertainty, we arbicinaie
mintmat imgact on our resucs due to the
predictzble revenue siream: ard cost base, and
essentia: rature of our activites upled with the
diversification we have cuilt up across the business,
wWe are po*morwd strongly for these turbulent

trmes ancg

We continue to pay particular attention to the bwin
challenges of ris'ng inerest rates and surging
inflaticn - both in terms of lendirg ard portfolo
management Trese rends impact all areas of the
Group's business and are Lkely to remain for the
foreseeab.e future, so we remair disciclined in cu

investmert approach, contiruing o monitor the

situatior carefully and taking a prudent agproach to
any currert and emearging risks,
We are positive about the conunued opoortanity

for growth and continue to telieve that the
bLsiness is positioned well to take advantage of
future growth coportunities acress its core business
areas Ernergy, lencing and house building
operations are well establshed in thie market and
continue to make excelent progress with robust
performances in the naw firancial year. In ine with

our planned strateay, since the year end we sold a
roht, with
proceeds being redeployed irto new opporunities,

large sclar farm in Australia for a small

o fibre cortnues (o roll cut in line

ns and the Group Fas now passed

OOCI horres by our fibre networks,
nealtrcars divis or rernans

Arncurced within the autumn statement as part of
the 224 rinance Bil, the UK Govemment will

enact a 45% windfa'l levy Uklectricity Generator

Levy’ or "EGLT on o wholesale energy market
revenues Ir excess of £75/MWh This s exnected 1o
appiy to the Group from 1 January 2023 to 31
March 2028 Trie exact izgislation vl he publshed
sed on the inifiat

release an impact aralysis has peen gerfonmea

N mid-Decembsar 2022, out oa

as at 30 Septemper 2072 We esumate the imoact
10 be a drop in valugtior of aporoximately £45m

for 1ne sires affected, wheh contnbuted to a

4

2 0p decrease in the share price to 177.0p in

December 2022,

We expect to generate strong ¢oeraing returns

from our es‘\abushed divisions for the com:ng years,

in addion to the anticipated outflows ‘or our
construchion phase assets ~he ~ealthcare and
fibre divisiors are well into their buld phase in lire
witn our iorg-ferm strategy and we anticioate
strong retures over fne rext f
upco matusity

NvE LD SEVEn ye4ars

PS Latham
Directcr
16 Tecember 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
staterments of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

—

For a sumnmary of the Group's r

€5
Group finance review cn page 23

The directors have not recomrmended payrrent ©
a dewc;end (2021 £8l),

The areciors of e Campany wro were in ofce
o o the date of sigrung the

K3 Wiley

FG Barlow

T Artnur ianpoinied 1 July 21

M

Refer o the Striateqic Resort on page 1

Refer tc the section 172 statement o page 21

Certsadsir e,

=, on finangc.a: risk

marnagement including information on the

The Group's onjectives and polic

exposure
o market ricks are sot out in note 21 to the

of the Group t© credit risks, lauicity rsis

friancial statements The Group's principal nsks are
set oul in e strateqic report on cage 16

As permitted by sechicr 414¢ (11) of the Companies
Act 2006, the directors have elected 1o disclose

irformahcn recu red I be e the directors’ re
by Scredule 7 of the 'we

Companes and Groups (Accouts ang Rf—:poris
Reguiations Z2C0&, ntre stra

QIc report

Tne Board recognises that & corporate culture
based o

asset Tre Growp endeavours 1o condact its

nsound ethcal values and behaviours 1S an

busiress with rtegrity. 'n an etnical, professicnal

and respons.bie mannaer, treating cur emplove
custermers, suppliers ana cariners w.th courtesy

anc respect

Applicatons
are given full and fair consideratior for all

‘or emp.oyment by disan'ed persons
vacancies, having regard to their particular aptiiudes
and abitties Snould a oersor become disanles
while i the Group's empioyment, every effort s
Mage o retals e e e ayment, giving

alternative trai-ing as necessary
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e e I N
A w . La

We fuily realise that our ployees wisn to be
nforred and consuted on matters affeching ther
work and (o be invelved in problem-solving a®ecting

their own areas of nterest and responsib ity

The Groun s frmiy comrmitted o a policy of gooo
cormmunicat on at all leve < and we a

qes the open
ently th:s

ocat level ard

a clirrate which consianily encaoura
f.ow of information anda ideas. Prese
ncludes moentniy rearn brefings at a
the oublication of mernthly key performance
incicators covering cufplt, ogerating costs and
nealth and sa‘ety.

The Groun has in place an agreerent witn OCtopus
Group coverirg aperational oversignt,
administration, compary secretar al and co
accountng

N TR T

Tre Board ancoted a formal environrental, social

and corporae governance ("eSGT poloy on

30 Sepernber 2020 The Group recogrises tne
Lal=]

nead 1o conduct 43 business, 3 manner that is
responsitle o the erviranment, wherever possile.
As alow energy Jser, the Company has elected not

to disclose data on iis energy and carbon usage
Fern Trading Limited 1s the only Company in the
Croup tnat meets the reporting criteria and
therefore no information 1z provided for the Group
as a whole

The Grouc's nas an Anti-Bribery Policy which
mtroduced robust procedures to ensure “Uil
cemphance with the Bribary Act 2010 an
that the highest standards of prafessional ethica

¢ to ensure

conduct are rmamnta:ned.

In accordance with the recomimendations of The UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
cnsdered
staff of the Group or manager of the Group to raise
concerrs, in confidence, within their organization
about possible improprieties in matiers of inancial

the arangements i place 10 encourage

reporting or other matlers. It satished that adeguate

~ents aren place ¢ alow a» ndependent

arrarige: i
investgation, ard follow-

o tae rla

on action where necessary,
ce within the orgarisation

We are cormrnitted to acung ethecaly and with
integrity in atl our
nd to implermenting and enforcing

ousiress acalngs ard
relationskps
effective zysiem™s and contrals to ensure modern
slavery 1s nort ta<ing place anywnere in our own
business or n any of aur supply chans, consisent
with cur obligations under the Modern Slavery Act

15 We expect the same high siandards from all
of our contractors, suppliers and atrer tusiress
pariners. As par: of Qur Contracting processes, we
expect ou suppliers to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015,

ToyTauen huIene Lrele v
b [N s T T Ty

The directors are respensible for preparnng the
Anrua: P_,_Nt and ine firancial staternents in

arcordance with apphcable law and regulateon

Campany taw requires the directors to prepare
financial staterments for each financial year Under
that iaw the directors have orepared the Grouo and
Company financial statements in acco
United Kingdom Generaly Accepted Ac
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising RS 102 "The Finarcial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Iretand”, and applicabe law) Urder
the directors must not approve the financial

shed that they give a

dance with
counting

company law

staternents urless they are sati
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true ana fair view of thie state of afars of the Group
and Comgany and o tre profit or loss of the Group
and Comgany for that penod. in preparing the
fingrcial statements, the direcicrs are required (o

« select sutable accounting poi C'eg and thern aoply

rerr cons%ﬂer”tly;

» siate whetrer applicanle United Kingdorm
Accounting Standards, comprisng FRS 102, have
been folowec, sulbject tc any material Ceparilies
disclosed and explained in the francia
staternents;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent, and

= prepare the inancial statermente on the goeng

concem basis unless it s inapproprate to
presume that the Group ard Corrpany will

CONTNUE IN busness

Tre drrectors are aiso responsible for cafeguarding
the assois of the Groun ang Company and hence
for takirg reaccnacle steos for the preventicr a~d
cotector of frawd and cther irregulanties

Tre directors are responsible for keeping acequale
accounting records that are sufficent to show and
explain the Group and Cor*many‘s rarsactons and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any timea the
financial positicn of the Group and Cornpary and
enable them to encure that the fnanaial statenents

cornply with t~e Comoanies Act 2006

The drectors are responzinle for the mantenance
and integnity of the Company's wetosre Legislaticon

in the United Kinrgdom governing the preparzt.on

and dsseminat cr: of Anancial staterrents may differ

from leqislat.on in ather junsaictions.

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the

i

directers have tre beneft of an indemnity whichii
3 qualifying turd-party indemnity provision as

defined by sacticn 234 of the Comparies Act 2006
The incemnity was i~ force througnout the last

nnancial year ana

s zurrently in force.

a the

« 50 far 25 the dvector is aware, there 3 no reievant
audit information ¢f which the Groun and

Cornpany's auditors are unaware, and

= they have tzken ail the steps that they ought
o have aken as & Girediorn In order 1o maxe
tremzelves aware of ary relevant aadit
nformation and o establisn that the Group and
Compary's ausitars are aware

Th e confirmaton is giver ana shouid be interpreted
N accordance with the grovisions of section 418 of
the Companries Act 2006,

Zrnst & Young LLF having heer appointec in 2022,
have iIndicated the'r willingness to be reappoined
‘or anotner term and wiil be proposed for re-

appo ntment in accordarce witn section 485 of the
Companies ACt 2036,

The Drectors’ segort was aporoved by the Boara o
Direcrors on 16 December 2022 arc signed anits
behalf &

PS Latham
Cirector

that informaticn.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Chpinion

We have audied the financial staterments of Fern
Tradirg Limited {the Parent Company’) and itz
subsid gries {the 'Group] for the yeac ended 30
June 2022 wh ch comprise the Grous Staement of
Camprenenzive Income, the Groug and Parent
Co Sheet, the G
Casn Flows, the Group and Parent Statement of
Changes in Zquity and tne related notes 110 293,

pary Baarce sroup Staterment of

ncluding & Sumﬂ"ar)f of significant acco ntmg

oolicier The financial reporung framework that has

peer appued N therr preparation & apglcable law
anid U ed Kingdom Accounting Stardards

mctuding FRS 102 "The Finarcial Reporting
Standard acgicab.e in the Ud and Repubiic of
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generaly Accepted
Accounting Pract ce),

Inour opmion, the irancial statements

o gue atrue and far view of the Group's and of te
Farent Company's affairs ag at 20 June 2022 and
of the Group's profit for the year fher ended,

« Nave been properly precared n accordance with
United Kingaorr Gererally Accepted Accountng
Practice, and

en prepared in accordance with tre
requirements of tre Campanies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in aczordance with

Internationsl Standards on Auditng (UL (15As

and agplicable law Cur resporsibilites under those

standards ara further descrbed in the Auditar's
esponsipilties for the audit of the finarcial

(L)

+

staterments section of our report. We are

ncependent of the Grous in accordance with the
etnicatl requirernents that are relevant to our audit of
tne financisl staterments i the UK,
FRC's Ethucal Standard, and we have fuifilled cur
other ethical responsit-lities i accordance with
these requirements

nicluding the

We beueve that the audit eviderce we have

obizinea is suficient and aoproprate 1o provide a

Dasis for Gur Gpirmen

Conclusions relating to going concern
in gudrg the Fnarcal staements, we have
concluded that the girectors” uze of the going
concerr pass of accounting in the preparation of
trie financial staterrents is aporoornat

Based on the work we have performed, we Fave
not dent.fied any matenal uncertaintes relating to
everts or conditions that, mdwidually or collecuvely,
may cast significant doust or the Group and Parent
Compary's aniliy 1© continue as a going concers
for a peried of tweve months from when the

financial statements are auwthorised for issue,

Cur responsibilities and the responsib-lities of
tnie directors with respect 10 going concern
ribea
report However, Decadse not ali future events or
cond tions can be predictad, this stalement s Not a

are desc In the relavant sect ons of this

guaraniee as to the Group's abity to contrue as a
going concerm.

Other information

The other information compnses the information
ncluzed in the annual regort, other than the
financial statements and our auaitor's report
trereon The directors are resporisibie for the other

nformation contained within the anrual report

Cur opmioa or tne financia. statements does rot
other informat an and, except to the
e explicitly stated in this report, we

ress any form of assurance conclusion

Crur responsibility 15 o read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whiether the other
infarmatcn is materiaily inconsistent with tne
obtaned in

hnancial staterrents or our knowledg

A ‘T{ v
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

tre course of the audit or otherwise apgears to be
rmaterially misstated If we dentfy such matenal
inconsistencies or apparent matériay msstatements,
we are required to determine whether ths gives rise
t a material msstaterment in the financia.
staternents themselves, if, based on the wor< we
have performed r“cude that inere it a

rratenal misstaterment of the other irformation, we

are required 1o report at fact

We have nothing 1o report in this regard

Opinions on other matters prascribed
by the ﬁi&?‘%ﬁﬁ&%&%%&& Act 2606

in our opinion, based on the work underta<en m

the course @f the audit

« the smformation given ir the

Strategic report and
the D rectors’ repart for the financal year for
which the fnarcal statermments are preoared s

cons.ctent with the financal staterments, and

» the Strategic repot and Directors report mave
beer prepared in accordance win appicante
legal requiremearits

Matiers on which we
report by exception

are rauuired o
in the light of tre koow edge and undersanding of

the Group and the Parert Company anc its

ervironment obtained in the course ¢f tne audil,
we Rave not identifed matenal messtatements in

the Strategic report or Directors’ resors

We have nothing to report in respect of the
follorring matters in relabion o whics the
Corrparnies Ac: 2006

requires us (o repart o you ©

N our Soiren

= adecuale aCCouning retorcs Yave nol Dean Keot,
o returms adeguate for our audit Nave

received f-orr branches not visited oy us, or

= ine Parent Compary Mnancial staiements ane nor
GCCoUNtTS

Inagreernent with the &
retldrne. cr

» certain disc Directors’ remuneration

specihed by law are not rrade, of

v we Fave not red sl tne informat on and

exp.anatiors we regure for our audit.

Hesponsibilities of direciors
As explaired more fuly 10 the Directory
o pages 29 and

aration

responsibil fies statement set out
20 crele

30 the Directors a7e resp
I for being sansfed

for the prop
of tne financial staterrents end
that they gve a true i view, and for such

S}

irternal Ccontro.
cr

finangial

aration of

necezsdry 1o

from matenal

swaterneris thatare fre

rrsitatenent whetrer due to fraud or error

in prepanrg the financial statermenis e Direciors
alre respansible for aszecong the Groud's and the
Parent Cory abih

corcern, disclosing, as a

Np&Eny’s y IO contirue as a going

oplicasle, matiers related
t going concern and using the going concern

+

basis of account ng urless the Dirediorns either
rtend o

Company or o

squigste tne Group or the Parent

cease operat\ohs, or have no
reaistic allerratve out 1o do so

{Lities for the pudit

Auditor’s respon
i bemients

sib
of the Hrnangial sta

Our olectives sre o obtair reasonacle assurance
shout whether tre Francial staternents as a whole
are free from materiac misstatement, wnoetner due
1o fraua or error and 1o issue an audifer's repor:

trat ‘ncludes our opin.on Reascnable assurance 3

a rech level of ce, butis not
an

will aivways derect a material

audit corducted in ﬁcc\,-'d NCE 3 L

nusstatenent wnen -t
srigts M gstaterents can arse from fraud or errar
srd are corsidered materis. f, individuaily or in the

ate, they couls reasonaby be expected o




wd
4ok

3 | GOVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation ag to what extent the « obtanng an understard:ing of policies and
auclit was considered capable of
getecting irregularities, including

Fravd

procedures ir pace regarding complia

(1
D

with .aws and regulations, including hON
compuance with such pehaes s monitered
and enforced: obtaning an understanding of
rianagerent’s process fo wentfying and

Irreguiarities, ircluding fraud, are instarces of non-

cormpliznce wih laws and reguiatiors We dexsi :
respond-ng to fraud risks, including programs

procedures inline wih Qur respons eg, outlired

above, 10 detect irreqularities, inclucmg fraud The

and contrels estabiished to address ris<s

a
. . . . ] + e tharw . sm nrpys ot
risk of ot detecun ] a materiz: misstaternent dues o ¢ \oemﬁeg, or olhervrse prevent, deter and
fraud s Pighar than the ris< of NoT detectng one : getect fraua, and how semor rranagermant

. : nonitors those prograrms and conurals;
resultrg from error, as fraud may nvolve delberate menitors fhose progrars and conirels;
conceament by, *or example, forgery or inlertiona. [ e review of board meenng rrinutes in the period
misrepresantatons, or through coluscn, The : and ug to date of wgring

extent to wach our procecures are capable of : ) ) . )
Poe We assessed the susceptibiity of the Group's

detecting irregulantes. including fraud 15 detaied :
: finarcial statenents to material messtatemeant,

nelow Fowever, the pnimary resgonsio :*y or the : . )

‘ : iNciucing how fraud rmight occur by hoding 2
prevention and detecnon of fraud rests with both : - )

, : discussion withn tre audit team which ncludsd

those charged with governance of tf“e arfity ard :
management « denufication of related carties,
Cur acproach was as foliowe : « understanding the Groug's business, the

) NG, 8rvircn ni sses5%ing the inherer
« We oblanad an understanaging of the legal and 9ALO: EMVITONMENT and 855€3319 eret
: risk for re:evant asserhions at the significant
regalaicry framewor<s that are applicable 1o the : ] . R
accodrt level including cizcussiors with

Group and determined that tne most sigrificant : i ‘
. e ranagerrent 1o gain ar undersiandirg of
are those that reiate to reporting framework (FRS 3 " . Th‘ p . e which
) : thiose areas of the financ at statemerts which
102 and tne Comparses Act 2006] : e ) ; ‘_,‘ ‘
: were susceptible to fraud, as identined by
« We understood haw rern Trading Lirmited is ranagement, and
compying with those frameworks by making :

; . « considered the controls that the Grouwp has
ergurries of menagement, those charged with

) : established (o aadress nsks identifed by

governance and those responsicle for legal : ) ) )

‘ ) ‘ : the emty or that otnerwise seck to prevent,
and complance procedures as to any fraud risk : )

. . i ) . : deter or detect fraud including gairing an
framewaork within tha entty, inctuding whether :
e . ‘ : understanding of the entity level contrels and
a formal fraud risk assessments completed. We !
: polc.es trat the Group applie

corroborated sur engLines thrauglh review of the
following gocumentaton or performance of 1 e Based on this understanding we desgred cur
following procedures : audlt proceaures o iaentify nen-corrpliance

: with sueh laws and reguiations. Our procedures
P involved festng of journal entries tnrougn
journal anatytics tools, with focus onomanuel

» CBlaning an understaqding of entity-leve!
conurols and considering the influence of the i
control environment,

SHa i by ke
i
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

A

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeling our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowtedge of any nen-compliance

or potential non-compliance with taws and
regulations that could affect the financial
staterments; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

further description of our responsibilites for the

audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's welbsite at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

I
LI

L I I e T

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

FonsbZo /LL.L-P

Michae! Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the vear ended 30 June 2022

2022
N ote

{restated)
2021

£000

£000

Turnover 1 71L§Bd “

)

4

Cost of sales (410,883}

Gross profit 300,947
{258,251}
Operating profit/(loss) o R - 2 M42w6w96

Other income 1 31,550

Administrative ennenses

‘neome from othor fixed asset Investments 5,249
Share of cperatng proht o joint venture -
soInt venure & 29,533

Ctner inmerest recavabie anc similar ncorme 4] 130

Preit on disposal of subsid ares ar

inferect payable ara similar charges £ (33,554)

Profit/(loss) before taxation 47,604
Tax or proftfiloss) 7 {16,294)

sy w xoymons

425,302
(221,777)

204,025

(231,844)

@7819)
9,454
449
1755
28568
997
(36,067)
Caeen
(6,34)

Profit/{less) for the financial year , - - , 7 31,310 '

Attributable to Fern 37,932

Minorityinteres}rw B B o S {6,622}

31,310

{31.012)

(27.005)
(4067
(31,012)

All results relate to continuing activities, Note 26 detalls tne prior penod aajustnents

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 30 June 2022

2022
£'000

{restated)
2021

£'006

ST

Profit/{loss) for the financi

Other comprehensive income
Maovernents n cash flow hedges 77,985
Foreign excharge gain/iloss on retranslation of subsidiaries 18,561

Other comprehensive income for the year 96,546

Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856

Attributable to
« Owners of the parent 134,478
» Non-controlling interests

127,856

ear 34,310

(66227

(31012}

44,983
(333)

44650

13638

17,645
{4007
13,638
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Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

AL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

frestated}
2022 2021
o .Jotc E.'OOO £000
?mea ;;;ets s« o e e s o SR SRR RS LS5 £ S S e e A AR S i s e e 20
lntangible 855615 X 557,708 576,738
langible assets 5 1,893,430 1581682
Irvestments 16 35,452 11000
T © 2486590 2160421
Current assets T
Stocks 17 184,479 94,711
Cebtors tncluding £138m (2021 L6 L) 13 623,161 598.002
due after more than one year)
|Ch c_}t (jr!ﬂk Wd ol "'lar"J 11 256,415 17/ 478
. a S ST 1054?(“{55 o 865 191“‘
Credutors amounts falilng due \mthm one year S 14 E256 152) (’702 OJ9 .
Net current assets o S ' 807903:» - 6#313/
Toi;!' 7a”s;éts less current llab:lltles MS 294, 493 2 832 555
Cred:tors amounts fatlmg due after more than one year o (993 425) o (9f“3 339! h
Prowsmns for lmb;ht;es - W (BZ 620) ‘ B (41 37&). .
Netassets 2,219,848 1887842
Capitat and reserves o
Calleg Lp share capta. 15 161,662 145676
Shara prer il aooouni 364,882 173,118
Marger resenve 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow heds e resirve 63,006 {14,979}
Profit and 105 accourt (2 770} 136,049
Total shareholders funds 77777777 \ (2 222,349 1, 884 121
r\on n;r;r\tr:;.[l:(‘ imerests (2 901) 3721
Capqtal employed o ‘ z 219 448 1,887.842

a'ls the prior perod adjustments

These conscidated franca. statements on pages 35 0 32 were approve
6 December 2022 and are s.gned on thair behalf by

PS Latham
irecor

Regiztered number 2260163

ed by the Board of

drectors on
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COSTATEMENTS 50 JUNE 2022

Company balance sheel as 31 30 June 2022

2022 2021

e e e . . s e £000 £.000
Fixedassets e o . : AR U 8 53 A
Investments 13 2,539,978 2,116,366
Current assets . .
Debtors 13 39,888 50,383
Cash ar ba*’k 2t f_i fig! h} v‘! 11 6,422 1 5/3

46310 51,906
Creditors: amounts falling due within oneyear e oroa
Net current assets e 45,861 - 28j92
Totai a;gsets Eess curreﬁtiu#blhtues R ) v 2;585,539 - 2 145 348
Net assets ” 2,5&5,836 o 2 145 348
Capitat and reserves
Cal'ed p share capital 2 161,662 149,67
Share preraiurm accourt 364,882 173118
Merger reserye 1,986,457 1,791,145
Proft and loss accouart 72,838 31409
Totalshareholders' funds ) ) 2585839 0145348
The Comgary nas elected to take tne exemption under section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not to

presert ine Company profit and loss account. Thne profit for the finar p rod deatt with in tne firancial

300 (2021 loss of £157,50 O

statemerts of tne Company was £236,742,0

These firancial staterments on pages 25 to 92 were approved by the Board of cirectcrs on 1

and are sigred on their benalf by

PS Latham
Director
Registered number

12601638

P

9]

Cece

miber 2022
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Group statement of changes i eguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022
Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and toss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
{restated) {restated) funds
{restated)
E£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 E'000 E£'000 £000
T ARSI A BRI TES g B BT S 0 L 3 S TR i S S Dot ARETRS HT  75 L  on
138,435 - 1635569 163.827) 41,185} 1668582 9570 1678552
SO perod o n
Sdusnents fr o 26} - - - 3875 13573 17703 - 17703
ST A 1368435 - 1635563 (56.562) (27356 1686685 9570 1596255
Jeldtresraiad)
oss for the finanga -
Loes for ihe fraral - - - - (27.005! (27,005 (4.007) 21012
Jranges v market
value of zash fiow - - - 44,983 - 44583 - 44983
- - - (223 (333 - (333]
- - - 44,982 (233 44,650 - 44,650
- - 44987 127.338] 17645 14,007 1362
- - - - 1831 L1831 (1,842} (13}
cLsiness combnation
Uesaucn of renrger _ - (195,317) _ 195312 _ _ ~

reSRNE

Shares ssed curng

11,685 173118 - -

Sabrce o2t 3 e 149676 7318 1440257 114.575)
ley rastareds

(aad) - - - (6.393)

135,049

184803

(6.843)

184,863 -

(6,843) -

1884121 3721 1887842

Balance as at

1 July 2021 (restated) 173.118

1,440,257 (14.979)

149,676

Profit for the
financial year

Changes in market
value of cash flow - -

hedges

Foreign exchange
{oss on retranslation
of subsidiaries

136,049

37,932

13,561

1884,121

3,721 1887842

37.932 (6,622) 31,310
77,985 - 77,985
18,561 - 18,561
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share= controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds

£000 E'000 £'000 £'000 E£°000 E£'000 £'000 £'000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
the year
Utitisation of merger _ - 195,312 _ (195,312 _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 Jume 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Mcte 26 derails the prior pericd adjustments.

Company statement of changes in eonty for the year snded 30 June 2022

Called Share Metrger Profit Total

up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’

capital account account funds

‘ ) ) ) E'ODO o £'000 ) -~ £'000 E'GO0 £'000

B;a;::at;m”:y - R S e - - -
0>S.‘>r %h-e %.’:aru.c-'al yer‘:r- - - - - (1575(];& . ‘(157-:5053

Utilsator of merger reserve - - 1195,312) 195,512 -
Tots compretersie nmome LT T sy 37808 157504

Sharss ssusa cunrg e year 150,120 173,118 1986457 - 2.309.635

Shares cancelied dudrg he year (444) - - 16,395] (5,843)
Balanceasat 30 June 2021 140676 173118 1751145 31,408 2145348

Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741

Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,420 236741

Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750

Shares cancelted during the year - - - - -
Balance asat 30 June 2022 161662 364,882 1986457 72,838 2585839
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Group statement of cash flows for the yvear ended 30 June 2022

{restated)

Mote 2022 2021
Cas};ﬁ‘;wsfr omope ratmg ;;t;\;itne;‘ oA g e s SRS Yo £ B ey i i R SRR TSR B e e
Profit/thoss) for the financial year atiributable 1o the owrers ©° the parent 37,932 127005
Adjustments for:
Tax ¢n profcdl 7 16,294 8,349
IMterest recaivable and sirtiiar ncome & (130} 1997}
Interest payalie and other similar CRarges 5] 33,554 36,068
Profit on disposal of subsidiares and ot venture # {29,532) 128,568)
Incorme from 'ont venture - (1,755}
lrome from Fuad assel investmaents (5,249) [449)
Arioriisaton and mpanment of iNtangible ixed assets & 45,762 27704
Depreciation of tangiole fxed assois Ej 101,802 81,697
Non-cash staff costs 3,040 8,375
fMaovernernts on dervatives and fore g1 exchange {18,044} [19.788)
Irciesss N stock {19,829) {5,701
ncreasel/decrease 1n debtors 31,022 245,374
Increasefidecraase) in creditors (173,956} £,871
Mon-cantrolling interasts 19 (6,622) (4,007
Tax recei ve .\or-lJ\ 25,853 ( 1,751
Net cash generated from o;e}atlng activmes T 41, 897 - 341 917»
Cash ﬂows from investing activities ST
Purcrase of subsidiary undertakirgs (ner of casn acgairad) (52,377) (221587
Sale of subsidiary undertark.ags and joint venture 101,778 34503
Furchase of targible aszots (322,446) {110457)
Purchase of ~ta (e assets {7.222) (3875
Porchase of uristed investrments {124,203) (29,617
Sale of unusted investrments 10 105,000 20133
Irterest receven 5 130 G997
ire ome o jo - 1077
Net cash used in mvestmg acli\ﬂtles - I (239?4»83 - (306 220; )
Cash flows ffom fmancutl; activities S -
Proceeds trom financing 201,719 -
rterest paid (32,319) {35,552}
Repaymenis of fimanarg (32,013) (212,676}
Proceeds from share issue 15 203,750 184,359
(ﬁa‘ el aﬂ 3 of sr“ﬂrca 18 - 16,399)
Net cash generated from hnancmg actlvut:es ‘_ - 341 137 - ‘70 auP)
Net (decrease)lmcrease in 7ca;h and cash equwaients I 33 694 - (34 577)
Casn anc cash egusvalents ar the 2egnning of tne year 1 172,478 206,688
Excharge gaivs on cath and cash equ:alemts - é4.’tw o 367 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 256,415 o 172478 7

Note 26 details the prior period ad:usimerts
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information
Fern Tradmg Lrrsted Utne Company') 1s & private compary lmited by =hares and incorparaed on 14 May

2020 Tre cornpany is corricled in Englanz, the United Kingaorn and regsterad unaar company namber
1.26501630 The address of the registered office 15 at 6th Floor, 33 Molborn, London, Kngland, ECZN 2HT,

Statement of compliangs

The Group a1d mdividual firancia. staterents of Fern Tradirg Limited nave boen prepafeq in comrphance
with United Kirgaorm Accumt(ng Stardards, nciuging Fnancisl Reporting Staraard 102, The Finenc.al

g
Reporing Starcard appiicable ir the United Kingoorm and the Republic of rrefana (7RG 1027 and e

Companies Act 2006

Basiz of preparation of #nancial statements

The financia. staternents have ceen prepared o a going corcern bas's, under the histoncal cost convention,
as mocifed by the recagniiion of certair financal aszes ard saballies measurad at fair valle, ard 1o
accordance with thie Compan.es Act 2006 ard applicable accountng siancarcs in the United Kingdom The
prINcpal accoJnt ng potces, wrich have bheen apclied consistenty throuanout the year, are set out below.

The corscldated financal siziermerts nclude e results of at subs dianes owned by Fern Trad.ng Lirmited
as usted in rate 29 of tne anraal finanaial statements Certan cornparies of these subsidiares, wrnich are
listed In ncte 29, have taken the exemoton from an addit for the year erded 30 June 2022 perrrwittec‘ oy

sction 4794 of Caompanies Act 2008 In order to aliow these supaidiares to 1ake tne audit exemol.on, the
parent company has civen 3 statutory guarantee, nbre with sectior 4790 of Corrpan es At 2006, of all
the cutstanding net liabilines a3 at 30 June 2022

Going congern

The Grouc's and the Compary's bus ness activ tes, togethar with the factors likely to affect ts future
development, performance and posiion are set out tne Strateqic Report or: pages 4 1o 14, Tne firancial
posttior of tre Growup, 'ts cash flows, hguidity posttion ard borrowing facilities are descnbed in the financia:
review on pages 23 to 27 The principal rs«s of the Group are set cut on pages 16 1o 19

The Directors periorm an annua. going concern review that considers the Grous's ability 1o mest 15
financial cbugations as they fal due, for 3 period of at least twelve mionths after the dare that the finangiat

statements nave been signad,

Due to the chalienging marke? conditions management have performed a1 assessrant o determing
whether there are any material unceainues arising that could cast significant ccult or the agdity of the
Group to continue as 3 going concern. No significant issues have bear noted and as a conszauence, the
e

GCroug is well placed tc manage its business risks successiuly desgite tre curre

3
direcrors beieve that i
U

uncertain economic outicok

orad

e y,%uwixl i
faE
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In reaching this conclus.on the Direclors nave reviewed the financial impact of the uncertainity on the

Croup's balance sneet, profit and lass and cash flows with specific consiaeraion given o the followng.

A raverse stress est was performed on tne base case forecast to ascertaim wiat scenanos would “esult in

risks 1o the Groups licuidity position The test

cwea ever in an unlikely scenario of a significant reducton

of revenue of 46%, the Group & abie to susizin its current operational costs and
due for at least a year frorm the date of signing t

facitres withirt the

riest all .abilities as they fad
rnese francal statements when ulsing the avaiable
\_JE'OUFJ

s

The Group nas a numrber of inancing facils es that contain covenants requir ng the Group to mramsan

cartain other finanac sl covenanis. These firancial covenants are

specifiea Anancia. ratics and comply with ¢
tthe date of ths report, the Group ic in compliance with all its Anancial
natly plausible scenanos such as a significant recuction i EBITDA of 84%

over time have been used to assess the covenant reguirements for the &t least the next twelve months and

all coveraris have been forecast to be met even urder the stress test scerano, 1~ the going concern peariod

At 30 June 2027, the Group hac avalatie cash of £256m and neadrocorn avaliable of £441m incuding a
revolving credit faciuty of £E210m. Debt of £88 is dus to mature in less tnan one year, with the remainder
£956m payable in Tore

sel our in Note

than cre year. The Groups fac it s, repayment cates and undrawn amourts are

16 _cans and BOrrowings
Key accourting judgement and estmales have been made with consideration given to the current
econcmic outook Key estimetes include loan recoveraoility, valuat-cn of work in pregress,

decomrrissionng orov sions, imcamrment of goodwill and investments, busness Corbinalions

accounting Details are

Based on the above assessment of cdrrent e

set out on peges 50w o1

ard hedy

€

conomc condinons ars the mpact on e Group's finsncial

position, hguidity ard Ainarcatl covenants, the directors nave concluded that the Greup ard Company Has

adeguate resources 1o conbtinue ir operat' onal ex stence for the next 12 months Tnus,

adop the go

Exemptions for gualifving entities undey FRS 402

ey continge 1o
> NG Cencern basis of accounting in prepacing the anriual firancial staternerts

FRS 102 skows & gualifying enuty certairn disciosure exemptions, sugiect to certan condiions, which have
been com p wd wih, ncluding ~otificator of, ang ro abjection to, the use of exempt.ons by the Company's
sharelolde
The Comoary has taken advantage of the following exemotions

from preparng 3 statemeni o° cash flows, or: the tasis that it is 3 qualflying erlity and the consc.idated

statement of cash flows, ircluded

i fro the Snarcial nstrument discio
paragrapls 12.26 1o ©2 29, &z tre
disclosures;

mpany key

:
: .,i“&i‘}xﬂ

in these firarc al staterneris included th

sures, required under FRS 152 pars

ar
ar
mat on g proviked in the consaldaed Anancal statemeant

rraragement oersornet Zompensaton, as required oy FRE 102
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Statement of accounting policies

Bagis of conspiidation

The consolidated financial statements Include the results of Fern Trading Limited ard all its subs diary
underta¥k'ngs made up to the same accountitg date Al intra-group balar ces, transactions. income and
expences are eliminated in full or censclidation The results of subsidiary undertakirgs acgured or dispasad
of dunng the pe*:oo are included or exc.ded from the noome statemert from the effective date of
ATCLSILCN OF GISH0SE

All undertakings over which the Group exercises controd, bemrg the power o govern the francial and
operatirg policies so as o oblain benefts from their activities, are corsc. dated as subsidiary underta<ings
Wihere a subsichary has d-Serent accounting policies to the Group, adjustrrents are made o those

subsid ary financial statemenis © apply the Group's accouring potcies when prepanng the consolidaied
finarcial staterents

Any subgichary undertax: r’ga or ascociaes sold or accuired dunng the year are mcladed up to, or from, the
Fangz of control or change of s grificant influence respectively

Where the Groun has wintten a put cplion over zhares heid by a non-cortrailing interest, the Group
derscogrises tne non-contrallng interest and instead recognised contngent deferred consicerat on liabil 'ty
within othier payables for tre estimated amcunt tkey 10 be paid to the no-cantroling interes: on exercise
of these options. The residual amount, representing the difference between any corsideraton paid/payabie
ard the non-cortroling imterest's share of net assets, is recognisea as goodwill Movemenrts in the

estimated ['zbiity after INitial recogniuon are recogrised a8 goodwill

Eorelgn currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statemerts are presented in pcund steding anc rounded to thousands.

The Company's functonal and presentation currency 1$ pounda sterling and rounded t< thousands.

il. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactiors are trarslated into the functional currency Lsing the spot excharge 7ates at
the dates of tme transactons. At eacn pe‘iod end foreign currency moneiary iters are translatec using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items measured at historcal cos: are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the fransaction and non-rmonetary items measured at ‘ar vaiue are measured Using the excharge
rate when falr value was determired. Fore.gr excharge gans and iosses resultng from the settlement of
transactions and from the translaton at pericd-end exchange rates of monetary asseis and lakxlines
derominated i foreign currercies are recogrsed in the profit and loss account,

Al fore gr excharige ga ns and losses are presented in the profit anc loss account w thin ‘adrrinistrative
expanses,

iii. Translation

The trading results of Groug undertakings are translated into ocunds sterling at the average exchange rates
for tne year The assets ard liapilities of overseas unaertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjusiments
arising or acqguisition, are ranslated at the excrange rates ruling at the year-and. Excnange adjustments
arising from the retrenslation of cperning net investmerts ard from the ranslation of the profits ar .osses

at average rates are recognised in 'Other comoranensive incorme” and allocated © non-controning interest

a5 approcriate

3
i
dires
o
=
S
*

T
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Turnover

The Group operates a nurniber of classe: of business. Revenae is aerived by the foilowing:
» Energy

Turnover from the sale of c.ocicity generated by <olar farrrs, wind generating asscets, reserve power

olants and biomass and landhl sttes s recognized on an accruals bazis in the percdir whick its
g

generated. Hevenue from lerg-term goverment backes offiake agreements, such as the Renewahle
) [

ibiigat or Certfication (ROC™} scherma are gccrued 11 the period in wh'ch it relates to, Turnover from tre

sae o "ertibser by piomass ard landfill busiresses it recogriced on physcal dispatch

* Healthcare
Turnover is recognised when the sigrifcant risks and rewards of ownership of retireient oroperies have

assed to the buyer (on lega: completon), tne amoun: of revenue car be recoagrised reliably, and it is
b4 = =

probable rat the economic berafits associated with the ransaction wil “low to the entity Turnover
1z recognized at the fair valeo oF the consideralion receiven for heahcare services provides i the normal

ed based o the date the

£
5
course of tuginess, and s

provided.

5

Hown net of VAT, Tur-over 15 recognis TICLE S

= Lending

Turmover 1epresents arrangement fees and nterast onica~s provided 0 customers, net of any value
i =]
added lax woan interestis recoygrised on an accruat basis in line with contractua, erms of the loan

h

agreement. Arrangement fees are spread over tha Ufe of the oan 1o which thoy relate

(1}

+ Fiore
Turnover is recogniseg at the fair vaiue of ine consideration received for interner connectivity and relaed
IT services provided .r the normal course of pusiness, and 1s shown ~et of VAT Tumover is recogrised
based on the date the service 15 provided

« House burding

Turncver 1s recegnised on leqal completon of tre sae of prooerty, lard and commercial spaces. Turnover
= = b

from Pousitg ascociation contracts is recoarises by refererce o the value of wor< completed as a

rte
propcrhion of the tota. contract value.
Empioyee benafits

we Group provices a range of berefits o en D.oyees, ImCu i anrual conus arrargements, pard naciday
~ b4 £l X
arrang

angements and deqned contnoution pension olan

n

i. Short-term benefits

hart terrr benefits incwud ng holicay pay and other similar non-maretasy benefts, are recogn sed a< ar

n

[l
@]

rxoenze nine period N wh o the service s rece vad

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defqned contnbut © plan s & peruos par dnder whicr the Croup pays fxed contnbanors o a

separate ertty Cnce the cortrbotions nave ceen pald the Groun has ro further payment cblgat on

o

Tne controltions are «ecogrised as an expersa wher they are due Amodnts not paid are shown n

jui)

accruals ir tne balance sheet The assets o e pan a

dmrirmstered furds

o separately from the CGroug in ndependently

Q

et dsiag
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iii. Share-based payments

O JUNE 2027

Casn-settled chare-nased payrrents are measured at fair value at the balarce shee: date. The Growp

TeCognises a

abiiity at the balance sheet dae based o

these fair values, takung intc account the estirrated

number of unts that will actualy vest and the current proportion of the vesiing pericd

Cnarges in the value of this liabfiily are recogrise
The Grouc has no equity-sefiled arrangarments

Finance costs

Finance costs are cnarged o the profit ard 10ss aco

interest mathod so that the amount chcrg is gt a constant rate on the carrying amount lss $

initially I’ECOQWSGG as a reducton in the oroceeds of the associated capital instrument and released to the
ed

proft and loss account over the term of the debt

Current and deferred tay

d in the income statermrent,

cunt over tne ferm of the debt using the ef
Le cost

Tax is recogn-sed ir the statement of mcome and retained carmings, except that g change attnbutable 1o an
tem of Income and experse recognised as other comprehensive incomre o to an iterm recogn sed directly

negity is aiso recognised ir cther comprehensive income or directly n ecu:ly respectively

The curent income tax caarge is calculated on the
sulstartively enacted by the balance sheet date in the

g%ﬁer&tes ‘ncome,

Deferred dalances are recognises -
by the Balance sheet nate, except that

« The recogrition of deferred tax assets 1S Limited o

espect of allt

basis of tax rates and laws that have peen eracted or
countries where tne Corrpany operates and

rrning differerces thiat have org.ratec but not reversed

) the extent that it is probable that they wil be recovered

aanst the reversal of deferred tax habities or other future taxable profits: and

Any deferrso tax balan
nave been met

ces are reversed if and when a |l concitions for retaining assccated tax allowances

Deferred tax balances are not recoqrised in respect of permarent differences except n respect of business

combinations, when deferred tax is recognised or the differences batween the fair values of ass

ts acguired

and the future tax deductiors available for them and the differerces between the farr values of r\mt\es

acouired and the amount that will be as

esced for tax, Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates and laws

that have been enactes or SJD“&IHT'J@[/ eracted by the balance sheet date

Business combinations and goodwill

Business comrbinations are accountad for by applying the purchase method.

The cost of a business compinatior 5 the fair value
assumed and the equity nstruments issued plus the cost

of the consideration given, laniites :ncurred or
s directy attributacie to the susiness compbination

Where control is acrnieved in stages the cost ‘s the corsideration at the date of each transacton,

On accuisition of a business, fa r values are attricute
liahilities unless tne fair value cannot oe measur ed

d to the identifiable assets, habiites ard contngent
elakbly, in which case the value 15 incarporated as

goodwill, Wriere the fair va.ue of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured ey are disclosed

on the same basis as other contirgent Lablites.
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Gocdw i recognised represents the excess o tre far value and directly atributable costs of the purchase

consideration over the fair va

wes 1o the Sroun'’s interest in the identifiable ret asses, labilites and

contrgent tabilities acauired.

Onacauiz won, goodwill s all
the cemoiration.

Goodwy s amortised over its

ocated to cash-generaung units {CGUS'} that are expecied 1o beneft from

expected usefu: Ife which 18 determired based on the estirmated bfespan of

the assets acq.ired. Where the Group s unaole to make a reliable estmate of useful ife, goocwill s

arortised over a parnod not exceeding ten years. Goodwil s rev.ewec anc assessed for imparrment

indicators on an anrual basis

Tangibie fixed assels
Taraible fixed assets are 3tat
off the cost of fixed assets, le

COMMences ‘ror” the cate an asset g bmughf into service Lanc and

and any impairment 1s cnarged to the proftand (038,

ed at cost less deorecation Deprecation is provided at rates calcuated (o write

ss trer estimated residual valug, over ther expected useful ives Depreciaton
d assct 5N the couwse of construction

are ot depreciated. The estimaten usefu! lves are as “cliows:

Assels in the course of constr
available for use

,M, to 4/0 ;
5/9 to H/ sl ,ht m
4% to _,-5/5 ;tra-ght [zre

4% 15 6° St'a GP ume

uction are stated ab cost. These assets are not depreciated untl they ara

Yirere faciors, such as technologcal advancement o ckhange rar nCe, MnCics i sidual value
W fact h as technol HEYS t Fanges in ket ncicate that residual valu

or useful life have changad. tne resigual vaiue, uzeful life or depreciation rate are amended prospecively (o
reflect the new circumstances, The assets are reviewes for imparmentif the above faciors indicate that the

CarryINg Arount may be impa

Gains ard losses on disposals are deterrminea by compariag the proceeds with 1ne Carry.ng amcunt and are

recoqnised within profit or lo:

intangible assels

Irlangile assets are statec a
Amortisaticr s calzulated, us

red

55

fcest tess accumulated amortisaten ang accumulated imiparment .0sses
irg the straight-lne metnod, 1o allocate the denrecianle amourt of the ascets

10 therr residual values over their estimated Jseful lves, as folows:

Arorssatinn expensat are

Development r ghts relate to olann ng conse~t o buid a se'ar farm and @ wind

riciuded \n adrminisirative ExXpenses

arT acgured on aTguishion.
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Where factors, such as changes in market price, iridicae that residLal value or usefu. e have charged, t
residual value, useful ufe or amortisabion rate are amended prospectvely o reflect the new croumstances.

The assets are revieawed for impairment if the above faciors noicate that the carryng amaount may
he impaired

Leases
AL mcepton the Growp assasses agreements thal transfer the nght to use szessment considers

a =
whether the arrarngerment <, or contains, g wease based on the substance of ne arrangamrent and whetrgr

the lease should be classiied az ether 2 finance lease or an operating lease.

hat rransfer substastialy all the risks and rewards incicental to owmerghip are Classified as

irance leates are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of tre

Al
IS
Wi
1]
—
w
—_

3 leprec.ated over the sharter of tne lease ter~ and the esumated useful bfe of the asset
Assels are assessed for smparrment gt each reporung date

Leases that do not tramsfer all tne nsks and rewards of cwnarsnip are classifizd as operaiing lzases
v

'n

ments Jnder operating wasas are crarged o the proat and loss account on a siraight-ine oasis over the

pericd of the lease,

Investments

The Comgary holds irvestrents in a subsidizry at Cost @55 accumuiated impairment lozses #an

rrpairmert 1oss 18 suksequently reversed, the carrying amo fthe irvestment 1s increasec (o the revisea
estimate af s recoverable amount, but orly 1o the axtent that hc revised carty-ng amou d wes not exceed
the careying amodrt that woalé have ceen determined had no imparrmert (oss been recognised i pricr
pericds A reverszl of an impairment loss s recognised 1in the profit and 'oss account.

nciudes cash 'n nand and depaesits repayabie on dermand Restricted cash represerts cash for which
the Group does not have immeaiate and direct access or for wh.ech regulatory or legal requirements restr
the use of the cash,

Stocks

Raw materiais, spare parts and consumables are valuen at the lower of cost and net realisable value Where
necassary, a8 provision 1s made for absolete, slow-maoving and defecuve stock, Costis determned on the
firge-in, Arst-out (FIFO) metnod,

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter) are valued or an average cost basis ovar gne 1o two months and pravision for
dnusab.e titter is reviewed mortnly and applied to off-site stock

Fuel stock of straw has beer valued at the nistoncal cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusabe straw
s idertified on an individual stack basis and 15 reviewed monrtrly Stocks are usea on g firstin, first cut
{"FIFC" bass by age of straw

Stocks of ash at Fiorophas are valled at the lower of cost and net realisable value (o the CGroup

Stocks of property develooment work in progress ("WiP"] are stated at the lower of cost ana net rezlisacle
value Cost cornprises direct materals and, where applicable, = labour costs and those overreads that
Fave bean ncurred in bringing the stocks o therr present locatons and condition.
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Al eacn reporting date, an essesament 1s made for irmpairment. Any excess of the carrying amoudrt of
stocks over Its estimiated seding price less costs to complete a~d sell is recogrised as ar imparment loss
riroUgh the prohl and loss

ccount Reversals of impairment (osses are also recogrised in the proft ang
&8s account

Avcrued coms

Accrled mcome on [0ans s Calculated at the rate of iInterest s2t GLt1n the [Can contracts =nergy ncome s
acCrued over tre penod nowhich it has ceen generated.

Deferred income

Deferred income 15 recogrised in accordance wih the terms set cutin the contact Deferred income s

released 1o the proat and loss account in the perod to which it retates

Finaneial instruments

_l
Iy
6]
i

ﬁ
9]
-
o
Z3
W
(%]

gl
j
m

osen to adopt Sectons 1 ang 12 of FRS 102w respect of financial instrur enis

Bazic financial assets, including trade and other rece'vab.es and cash and nank balarces are mually
recognised at ranzaction price, umess the arrangement constitutes a finsnang transachion, whee the

transacuon is measured at the prezent valus of the future recaipts discounled at 3 rrarket rate of Inerest
Such assets gre subtequently carmed at arrortised cost using tre effechve merest rretrod.

ol

At the end o each reporting ocriog finanoal assets measured at amartsed Cost are assessed for obiecthve
e\/iders:e of rpa rment 1Fan asset s mpaired the imparrmert loss s the d ffererce betweer the cary ng
amount and tre present value of the estirnated cash flows discouned s the assel’s origingl effective interes:

rate. Tre mparrment icss s recognised in orofit or loss

Other inancial assets, ncluding investments in ecuity Instruments whick are not subsidiares, aczocates or

JO int ventures, are inaily measured at fair va'ue, wirich 's normally the tansacton price Such azsets are
subsequerty carred at far value and the rfuahges n far vaiue are recogn sed in orofit or Ioss, except ikat

investrnants 0 egquity instruments that are not puilicly traded and wnose fair values cannot e measure
relizlzly are measured at cost lessimparrment.

Srancia assets are cerscognised when (a) the contractual rights to the casn flows from the asset exoire or
are settled, or {o) substartially ali the nsks and rewaras of tre ownersh g of the ascer are trars’erred 10
arother party or o) controi of the asset nas bee~ transferred to an orher party wno ras e gract.ca: abiity
o unilaterally sell the aszet to an urrelated third party withoLt impces ng agditonal restrictons

Financial liabilities

Basic fnancial vapilites, ircludng rade ard or-er cayables, bark Joars, ioars from fellow Group companies
and preference shares, are in 2ally recogrisea at tra~saction orice, Lriess tne arrangerient constitutes a

fnangirg trarsact or, where the d2ot nstrumsant 1s measures al tne prasert valus o° tre furure rece’nts

cgistounied at a market rate of 1nTerest.
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Debt nstrumen:s are subseguently carried at arnortises cost. usirg the effectve interest rate method. Fees
paid on the establiskmert of loan faciities are recognised as transactior costs of the loan to the extent that
it1s probable that some or all of the facilly will be drawn down, In this cas the ‘ee i deferred unt ! the
draw-down accurs To the extent there s Nno evidence that it is probable that sorre ar all of the facility wil
oe drawn down, the fee s capialized as a pre-payrment for lguidity services ana amortised over the peroc
of the fadility vo whech it reates

Trage payables are obiaatons to pay "o goods of services tnat have been acquired in the crdirary course

of business from supzhers Accounts payalle are Class

fied as currert iab lites if paymert is due within one

yesr or loss. If not. thoy arc presenied as non-canenl liabiives. Traue payalles are recognisec Initiady at
trarzacton orice and subsequently meazured ar anrorfsed cost using the efecave interest metrod
Financial liabilties are derecogn’zed whean tne liability is exunguistied, that 15 when the contractual cblgation

is dizcharged, cancelled or expires.

Frovisions
Provisiors are made where an evernt has takern place tnat gvez the Group a legal o construct zaticn
that probably requires settierrenrt by a transfer of economic oeneff, and a reiasble estimate can be made of

the amount of the obligation

up becornes

tthe palance sheet date of the expenditure

Provis org are Cdarged as an expense to me proﬁt and loss account ntne yea

o
5
]
o
5
&)
P 0
O

aware =f tne cizligation, and are measur t the best estimate a
required tc settle the onligation, 1a<ing into account relevact risks and uncertairties

Hedging
The Groun acgles hedge accouning for transachions entered into 10 manage the cash flow exposures of
correwings Interest rate swaps are neld to manage the interest rate exoosures anc are des'gnated a: cath
flow nedges of floating rae borrowings, Charges in the fair values of denvatives deagnateo‘ as cash flow
“Ed_JE?S and which are effecive. are recognised directly 'n equity Any ineffectiveress in the nedging
relationship {heing the excess of the cumu.ative change in fair value of the hedg\ﬂg instrument since
cepton of the hedge cver tre cumulstive cnarge 1IN the far value of the hedged iter since nception of
the hedgel iz recogn sed 'n the profitand loss
The gairt or loss recognsed In other comprehensive Income 1s reclassified to the profit and 16ss in
cordance with the cash flows of the hedged tem. Hedge accountirg is discontinued whien the hedging
instrument expires, no longer meets the hedqing crnter-a, the forecast tranczction is no longer highly
nrokable the hedged debt instrument 1s derecogrised o tne hedging instrument s termirated,

Share capital

Ordinary shares 1ssued by e Group are recegn sed in enuity at the value of the proceeds received, with the

excass over nominat vaiue being credited to snare premium

Non-controlling interests
Non—controtmg interests are measured at their proportionate share of the accuiree’s idenufiable net aszsets
at the date of acouisition,

diHEan

RE et bag
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Key accounting ludgements snd estimates

The preparation of finarcial statenrents n compliance wth FRS 102 requires the use of certain critica
accounting estirmates, It alzo reguires managerent o exercise judge™ment in applyng the Compamy‘s
accounting polces Estimates and judgemenis are cerminually evaluated and are based on hisioncal
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to oe reasonable
undar the crcumsiances, The key astimates and jucgemerts r grepanng these financizl siatemeants are:

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)

Loans and agvances to cusiomers, including asscciated accruad Income balances, are reviewed for
Imparrment on a quearterly basis. In consdenrg the need for a prov.sion, Tanagament ceterrmine heir best
estrmate of the expected future cash flows on a case by case 0asis As this estimate relies or a Certain
numper of assurmpicns about future events which may aifer from actual cutcomes, incluging the
borrower's ability to repay mterest ana captal cug ir future Geriods, this gves rice to Judgemens as o
whether there 13 a shortfall between tne carrying value and the far varue of the debior palance

Management rote that orovisions against loans and advances is a crncal estirnaie and nave therefore
perfermed senutivty analys = on the provison The resulte of the sensibvity aralysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cartir the arrount proviced against the estimated halance at r sk weould rave resutead in
£36m less/maore excerditure peing charged to t-& income staterment 2urng the pariod Ses note 13 far the
carmrying amount of tre debtors and prowisions ar 30 June 202

ii. Value of property development work in progress { WIP') {estimate)

Property development W is reviewed for mpairment on a pemodwc basis In considenng the need for &
provision, management getermime ther best estimate of tne recoverabe value Managerent engage an
expert extamal valuer to grovice key a:surr'!pziorua abour future events which may differ from. actual
outcomes, Inciuging progerty valuauons, rae of <

les and cevelopMment Cosis,

—

These estimates give rse 1o jJudgement as to whether there is a shortfal cetween the carrying vaue and the
ar value of the vatance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year end, managenrent have raviewead the

assumphons used to defermine the value of property developrment WIP and have observed no changes n

<
=2

performarce that wolid impact the valuanon as a7 tre 20 June 2022 See nowe L2 for the carrying amouns

of the property deve'oprment WiR

. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

re Group owns two erergy genearat g sabisid ares inAustralia which have entered nita purchase price
agreaments (PPA'z) in 2019 and 2021, The PPA's include a contract for diferences "CID" whereby the
subsiciaries payfreceve amounis from the Custs rbased on the differerces petwesn a fixed sellng crice
and e attuzl price for elecincity solo to the Australi 75 gelieve the contracl s
spe of FRS 102 section 12 as tis for r

suchk arrangements. " nerefore s being accoucted for under FRS 102 secuen 23 55 a revenue contract wits

ian ereray market The drecio
o

outsigie the st sale of a non-financial ter and the 0 s typica. for

variacie consizeration, rather than revaw.ng the ertre contract to far vaue

iv. Business combinations {estimate)
The cost of a business cormomation is the farr value of tne consideranon gven, liaoilives incurrad olus the

costs directiy attnibutacle to the ous'ness comb nation. Far value of these comiinations s 2 key estimare
and more detais a vided o pages 45 1o 45,
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for gecommussioning £osts is measured al managerment’s best estrmate of ine present value
of the expenditure requ.red o zetile the future cbligation o return land on which there are operatioral wand
and solar farms, (o 1tg crigina. condit. on. The level of the provisions 1s determined w a significant degree by
the estrnation of fulure dismantlng and restoraton costs, as well as the tming of disrmmantlement

Wind Farms {estimate)

Maragerent note tnat decommissicnirg provisions £ a crnitical estimate and have therefore performed
ensitivly aralysis, Tne results of the senstivity anaiysis conclude that a change of +/- one per cent in the
discourn Lralg woud Have rewated N £2 Irn increase/decrease in the proviean. hee noie 1/ for the provision

recogr:sed at 30 June 2022 Marniagemert uthse external expertse to provide an esumated cost to
dismantie and have used 3 discodrt rate of 2% to reflect the time in value of morey and the nsks speaiiic
to the cbligator

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Group s requred to restore the leazeg premises of the solar fanr © ther arginag. congiton at the end
of the lease term A provision was previously recognised, however in the Current year this judgerment has

been reazsasied and manacement believe the 1essor may wish 17 aitner take title of the assets for either
continded use or 1o reause valde through selling the assets and as such do not believe that an cutfiow iz

probatie to settle this restoration obligaticon.

UK Solar {estimate):

During the year, & thirg party performed an asssssment of the base cost of the decommissioring of the
Croups UK sola farrns The findings have resulted in matenal change i the cost esurrate anc therefore 3
provsior has been recognised for the first time on some sites. The imipact has resulied i a provision be rng
rased for £18m o the balance sneet decommuission:ng hability and fixed assets. As at 30 Jure 2022 there s
rnompact on the grefit ard loss. SHes not affected are addressed beiow

UK and French Solar (judgment):

fMa=agerent believe tnat qiven the nature of these particuiar assats, tre lessar may wish to either taxe tile
of the assets for eithier continued use or to realise value through seiling the assets ard as such do not
believe tnat an outfiow 1s probable to settie this restoratior shlgation. Managemert will continue 1o monitor
the situat on at 2ach pa.ance sreat date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimatej}
The value of goodwili reld by the Group and investments in subsidiary undertaxings held by the Company
s reviewad annaaly for imparrment. The recoverabiity of these talances is considared with reference o the
present vaiue of the esumated future cask flows These calzulat ons use cash flow projections wh.on exiend
forward forecast business performance togetner with assumptions surrcurding tre expected life of the
azset, externally prepared forecasts and va.uations, and any adjustiments reguired to the discount rate to take
count of business risk The estimated present vaiue of these future cash flows is sensitive 1o the dizcount
rate and growth rate used in the caleulation, all of which require management's judgement Testng of the
carrying vatue has been performed during the year, which has involved several scenarios beirng modeled
Based ¢ this testng and the racylting imparment racognised on nvastrments, management belicves there
s sufficient headrocrm 1o sucport the value of goodwil and Invesimenis in sussidiary entities,

Maragerment note that I parment of goodw:l and investments is a critical est mate and have therzfore
performed sensibvity analysis o the provision. Tne results of the sensitvity analysis corclude that a changs
of +/- ore per cent in the amour: grovided against the estirrated balance at nisk would have resulted in

£5 491 less/maore expenditure beng charged to the income staterment during the period See note 8 for
the carying amount of the gooawill and ‘nvestments at 30 June 2022
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Analysis of turnover by category

2022 2021
_ E'000 £000

R R kR A aCoera s At YT YT 30 TER R AR BT RS ERE LSS band i whhd R smmmarane 2 Ta F7TTTT T MO NRAR O EARMEARRGRL R ARG & % o o 3 LENS PEEYEEAOE AN R FRER e Bk r o n 00

Lending acf:iur.ies 42,404 56,552'
Ernergy operztions — 50.arn 1eserve power and wind 365,958 179,820
Energy operatons  Domass and landfill 223,526 141,826
Healthcare cperzicns’ 45,978 42,266
Home buidineg 25,034 -
Fits tonrs 8,930 4838

Inciuded mincome from Heoltbicare oparanors s [174m (2020 F112m) reating t te gale of retrernart village unis,
and L28 am 2021 £41 Ty in relat on Lo services renderad

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022 2021

Uni{ed 4\ wiorn ‘ T 6703,‘911: 384,799 )
burupe 84,433 31,893
Rast of worla 23,486 8,610
425,302

Other income

2022 2021
£000 £000

o e E e

Liquedaied damages and Nsuranco procees

3,550 9454
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raging/lcreditvngs.

Amartzation of intargible asset

s /’TC,I(’ Cﬁ\

impaicment of INtangibie assets inote 81

Sepreciation of targisle assets (note 9;
Auditors’ remureration - Compa
fnand u\ staterrents
Auditors’ remureranon - audit of Company's sabs.diEnes
Audinors rEmureralion — nor-aucit Senices

Auditon rermiurer

Cifferenc

GHOr — Lax COmpIgrae seriies
ri foreign exchango

Operating leate rentats

2y and tne Group's consolidatec

JUNE 2022

2022
£000
37,849
7,913
101,802

45

819
246
482
7.772
13,783

e B BEEUAEEEREES RLERREE hakh b L b aui ot dadmer ok st bamasna 2s F e wEndaT

{restated)
2021

£000
5//O4

84,697
146

1.134
513
672

4402

7,502

Nate 26 asiais the onor penod adustments

Ty soas

L T R

Warges and salares
Social scounty costs

ot

persion costs

2022
£°000

U RSSO SR S T e L g D B o e T B T S

85,432
7,041

95 706

2021
£000

41,383
3809

The Groun provides & defineg

an expense for the defined contrbution scheme s sh

contribution schemes for its
O N e

employees n the UK, The am
2ble above

ount recogniized as

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022
Number

2021

Number

Preduchion
Adrnipnstration

Directors

1,032
631

699
348
3
1050

The Comgary had one emiployee cther than Direct

ors during the pencd ended 30 June

202212028 nonel.
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L BN
2021
£:000
Emolumenrs 163

Curng the year no pension contributions were made in respect of the directors (2021 none)

The Group has no other key management 12021 none;

Boer oo

Anumber of subsidiaries of the Group operate a cash-settied LTIP to gualifying empioyees. wnereby
employees render services Inexchange for cash, the amount of which s determined by referance to the
valuat on of the underlying subsidiary The fair value of the llanility for the awards made 1s measurad at sach
recorting date and at the settlement cate. The

air valug s recogrised over the vc“f\r‘z’} pericd. The amount
of expense recognised takes Intc accoun: tne best avaiable estimate of the nurmker of units expected 10
vest dnger the service and perinrmarce conditions underlying each awarc granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021
Number of Number of

sy

Opmmg T Jtstar ding Dalance

D S R P S -

(‘rcmteu UI *ruqt ¢ pcrmd 1763 563 274 751

Closmg outstandmg balance 7 3 678 314 1 914,751

Tne total charge for the year was £3,133,000 (2021 £1.334.050) and at fne 30 June 2072 there was a
latility of £2.407.000 included wathin creditors grester thar one year (2021 £1,334 000}

& oo
Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
o _ ] ] £000 £000
irterest o bank balances 130 G97
Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£000 £000
\rte'eg an bar"k LOTTOWIIgS 32,192 24,378
Arrortisaton of 1ssue costs on bark borrowings 2,597 1103
(Froft/loss on oer “atl/e firancia: ins rur‘”f_-r‘:ts (1 235) 587

IZs54 36068

1914751 1640000
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P e

a) Analysis of charge in year

frestated;
2022 2021
. . s e £ 000 £ono
E:u"entgax ...... T B S B e M 88 b b R b o : e o PP 5 A R T P8
UK corporation tax charge on oroit/iloss) for the year (297) 1648
Adjustimients inrecpect of pror periods 3,196 {2,866}
Fo @griiars ufferen 5,641 -
ol cuners e chmgedicredy gs5e0 (178
Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of traing aifforencas 6,227 2,072
Adiustments inrespect of prior pencds (3,741} {3,998)
Effect of £ chare nax rates 5,268 11.491
Tax charge on pro.fl;tll.fioss) oﬁ ordlnafy activities - - R 16,294 8,549

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assezsed for the year is nigher (2021 richer) than the standard rate of corporation @xin the UK of
19% (2021, 19%) The differences are expiained below

{restated)
2022 2021
] ] £000 £°000
l;;;;:ililoss) l;;a;ore tax ﬁ e ‘*1;7j604 T V(21‘.V17O}
Srofit o Llnslie Adard & r
ot e e e 2,045 4022)
Effects of
txpenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,723 16076
Qther effects {868} 1.022
Income 7ot iaxahie for tax purposes (8,102} {9,351}
Agjustmenis in respect of pricr pencds {545} (6.865)
Fﬁef ts of change I tas rates 5 041 11 489
Total.tax charge for the year - - I B 16 294 - 8, 249 ‘

<) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 Cune 2021 increaszed the main rate of UK corgoration taz frorm 197
25%. effective 1 Apnl 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been rmeasured at 25% (2071, 25%)
wich represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the baiance sheet date.

MNote 26 details the pricr penod adjusiments.
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N P I T

Software Goodwill Development Totat
(restated) rights
Group e EOOO o EDO0 £000 £'000
Cost ke s e e s e e A L S L e v g SBT3 RS A 5P 5 B S £ e e
At July 2021 {reststed) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782

Acquired hrobqh businass - 30,042 4058 34,100
comkaations (nnie 27)

Addit'ons 2,125 - 1,040 3,165

Disposals - (21,118 - (21,118}
Gan on trans.ation - ?950 - 7930

At 30 June 2022 - . ) 3,089 743 456 . o 15,314 761 859

Accumulated amortlsatlon

At duly 2021 frestated) 107 159,902 1034 161,043
Disposal - (2462) - (2462
Loss on ranslat.on - (192) - {192)
rparment - 7,913 - 7913
Charge for the year 12 7,514 523 S 37 849

At 30 June 2022 ‘ 319 zoz 475 ' 1,557 204, 151
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708

At 20 June 9“ 2% {rostated; 7 857 566 7OO 9.182 576 739

The gain or transation ¢f foreign currency dencminated goodwil s recogrised in otmer comprenensive

income Amortisation of goodwili is charged 1o adminisiral on Coss.
Detans of the subsidianes acquired curing the year erdeg Ju e fourd in 227
Betz fih i o d ng they deo 30 June 2022 can oe found in note 27,

Dur ng the year the groun d sposed of 2 wine farms i Fniand, as a result 2.5 of accumulated goodw
armorisat on was recognised in the current year and £19 3m of goodwil was real'sec o1 the sale Gain < !
sale recogrised in the praht and 058 in relaton W trs transaction was E28m

Imparmer: of £7.9rm has been recognised on gooawll 2021 rnone). !

MNea gssers nave peen pledaea as securtly for Labiities at year end {2521 ronel.

Trhe Comnary rnas ro nita=gicle aszets at 30 Jure 2027 (2021 none;

Naote 26 detziis the pror pencd adjustmants

cax e
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b B e

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated}
{restated)

Group £'000 £000 £'000 E'ODO“ o £000

e kom0 o oo e S £ S P LT BT E B ME SRR B B A B IR S R R SRR R B PR 0 KBRS R b b s SR 3 e R 23 CREASEE T IR Rgene

Cost

At L Juy 2021 irestated: 8,531 37467 1.685437 27288 43277 2092000
Additors 829 1535 73,647 604€2 238,005 374480
FRI2r value moverr ot - - 368 - 3.294 3662
Trans'ers - o8 1066 30,9336 {32.070; -
Disprsas 1125) - (75,951} - - (76,086)

At 30 June 2022 10,533 319,071 1,745,911 118,686 310,470 2,504,371
Accumulated depreciation
Ac1duy 2021 4,410 90059 414,559 1,290 - 510,318

-

arge for tre year 183 17450 81,141 3248 - 101,802

Dispesas - - (182) 221 - {403}
FX reovenncn: - - (776} - - (776)
At BbJune 2022 4,593 107,189 494,742 ‘ 4,417 - - 610,941
Net book value ] ] L I . . R i 3
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,230 }
A 30 June 2021 irestateo A4.21 227408 1.280,8?8 25398 43277 1,581,682

Included within tangiole assets are capital'sed finance costs directly attributable to brnging the asset into
use. Trne net carrying amount of assets Feld under fnance leases inc.uced n piart, machiney. fixiures and
Fthings is £51.785 000 (2021 £51,534.000 § Inciuded in network assets 15 & provisior of £1.023 000 for
opsclete equipment and developmien:

The Compary rad no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 2021 none)

Note 26 details the pnor pericd adjustrnents.
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0

S

Cost and net booi( value
At 1 Juy 2021
Adclitons

Lo BBR R

Drsposas

Atsoaunezozz - i

AL 20 June 20621

Unlisted
investments

~E'000

P S S e RS TR LD D T e A

Total

11,000
129452

S EosDoor

35,452
11,0600

s

11.000
129452
105,000
35452
11,000

£000

Company
Cost

At 30 Jiure 2021

R N T

Adartions

I'M[,ot dt

Accumulated |mpa;rments

Subsidiary
undertakings

£000

2311678
228,300

2,539,978

P RS R S L a R RENEE BAGE ST N T 0 L e eSO B SR Y L % R

Total
£'000

2311678
228,300

2 539 978

AL 30 Jure 2023 195312 185,312
Reversal of impairmerits {195,312; (195,212)
Impalrmpr\u - -
At 30 June 2022 - -
Net book value

At 30 June 2f 2022 e 2,539,978 2,539, 978
£ 30 June 202 2 116 36F 2.116,366
Cetails of relatec undertaxirgs are snown nnote 29

Lristec invesiments cormprise the Group's hod'rg of the memoers’ capital of Terido LLP a lendirg

buziress, and its sharenclding in Bracken Trading !

of wnbsted Investmearts re:at
recuiren erts end to utilise surplus funds. Fern has a smad sharehoid ng in Bracken
Lrne o time, Fern's mvestment i gracken

Gradng Lirrited

Lrmited. rern co-faunged Terido _LF :n Octcbe
the intention of for\durtmg a provoruos of itz fulare race through the partnersnp Addrtions and

e to invesiments and divestrments n Tendo _LP ' ine witn Ferr's cas

trading umites from
Trazing Limded at 30 June 2022 was ENiL {20 June 2021 £nl

Tre directors ac not consder Teqdo LLF or Bracker Trading _imited to be subs'diary urderakirgs of Fern
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i1
Cash includes cash in nand and depcsits repayabie or dernana
Restricted casn represents cash for which the Group does 1ot Fave mmiediate and girect access s for

whICh reguiatory or legal requirements resirict the use of the cash

' " 195,823
. 60 592 55 337
Cash at bank andin hand 256 415 172 478
Restricted casn s comprised of £726,00C held in Zscrow and 252,865,000 of cash heid in subs.d-aries witp
pi-arnJal distribution windows.
re Compary Pad a cash balance of 16422 GO0 as at 30 Jure 2022, nore of wrick was restricted (2021
ﬁone).
12 o
Group
2022 2021
o E£'000 £000
Ash stock 1,538 2,195
Flue! spare paris and consumables 26,023 18,593
Prope ty geveopment Y W 156 918 73 92"
184 479 94 711

The amcunt of stocks recogrised as an expense durng the year was £120.413.000 (2021

£41.212,000).

Included in the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock value 15 a provsior of £390.000 for unusable fue:
W F p) ~
2

stock (2021 £455,0C0). Including n property development WIF 15 2 provistor of £928 000 for wa

site specific provisions

There kas beer no imgairment recognised -’jur:ng the year on stock (2021 none) No invertory has peen

nledged as security for liabilities (20 21

The Company had no stocks at 30 June 2022 {2021 none;.
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13 0
Group Company
{restated}
2022 2021, 2022 2021
£'000 E'DOG‘ N F'OOO S ﬁ"OOO
Amounts falling due after oneyear - I
Leans ang aivances 1o customers 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and advanaces b CUstomIers 223,239 309,384 - -
Tradle cebiors 42,050 16,121 392 8
Arncurnts owed by rolated parties (note 24) - 3950 32,950 12751
Other ceptors 20,199 24972 3,843 5008
Corporaucn tas - 6,602 2,527
Denvatve financial nstruments inote 21 54,409 6469 - -
crued incomre 145 602 154 375 176 32,616
o 623 161 o 399 OO& H'.’;9»888 N W B 50,383
Loans and advances to customers are shated net of provisions of £13,874,.000 (2021 £18.199,.000)
Prepayrments anc accrued income are siatec of provisiens of E7729,000 (2021 £12,741,000)
Mo merest is charged on arourts owed by group ardertakings, as the outstanairg ta.ances are unsecured

r)
and repayakle on demand (2021 none.

Note 26 details the prior pernocd adjustments
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e D S ST IS R L A AL S
Group Company

[restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
E'000 o000 o EO00 OO0

Bark ‘cans and overdrafts 87,732 o 47586 - -
Trade crediiors 58,004 23,350 76 16

Other taxator and social scounty 8,161 - - -
Other creditors 24,362 55506 - -
Arnounts due to related parties note 24) - - - 20,203
Firance leasas inocte 18] 2,428 2147 — -
Dervat ve f nancial instruments (note 215 - 143 - -~
Accrda s and defered ircome B )75,4§5) ) 2087 373 S %705

256452 202059 249 22024

LB oo o Tl L e AT el

Group
2022 2021

Amounts fzlling due between one and five years £000 £000

v

AR S R T A T RS RS SRR R T R S R R M T S XA G PR TR e [ETRTS s s

Barik loans and overdralfts incie 16) 383,070 247,257
France eases (now 18] 5,899 6,125
Derivatve financial nsiruments {note 21) - -
5364 M5

Cther crecitors
394,333 258837

Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due after more than five years ‘ £'000 £'000

RS IEROE: bR T

San< loans and overdrafts ince 16) 573,416 577,235
TinAance wases inote 16; 24,676 24495

Derwative Frnanc.al instrurnents (note 22) - 42772
568,092 644,502
Tolal crecitors falling due after more thar: one year 992,425 903,339

The Cormpanry has no creditors due in greaier than one year.

Armounts owed W@ related parties are unsecured, non-nterest bearirg and regayable on demand

Note 26 detsils the prior pericd adjusiments.
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6 o i s

2022
Group £000

Du= in one year 87,732
Due betweer one and five years 383,070
Due in more than five years 573,416

1,044,218

2021
£000
Tarss6
247297
577,235
g71018

e Company had no bank toans at 36 Juns 2022

The bank lcang are secured against aszets of the Group with each Ioan as held by the subs'diary shown below:

Interest rate 2022

A ow thAR LAVL GERARE RSR DNIIANE D RAR RN -

& month SONIA plus 1.60% 429,138A
Cedar Fnegy and infrastruciure himites LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -

3 month FEURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Euos Fnergy 3 12% + &6 montn FURIBOR 56,079
Boomerang Cnergy Limmited & month SOMNA plus 1L.50% 284,348
649% (swap rate of 459% +

Eiios Energy 2 30,946

artingzon Pont Sols Pty Linite s
Dartingzon Pont Solar Farm Pty Lnited 1.9% margin) 114,026
Melton Renewable Cnergy UK Liruted & month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718
Dulaces W Hairkno PTY Lid 1.7% + BBSY 31,614

5 5o ~
Fiivia Homes Lirmitad 5% + SONIA + 2.5% non 12,306

dtitisation fee
Fixed rate 2.5% 43
1,044,218

2021

295,344

103,435

87191

r

SONIA repiaces LIBOR as the effective interbark iending rate systam
resulted N no commercial impact 1o the business

Finance leases
The future M rimurm frnance lease payments are as follows

2022
. Eo00

ot R MERRGRE e AR meREs SR R 8 ARARE T ARARAELSAAS CALAALS SASARAY L SALA S CARALLL VLUay Sie samiu v wAs ph

Payrrerts que:

Not later thar cre year 2,428
Later thar one year a~ not later than five years 5,899
Later thar five years 76,461
Tota. 4ross paymerts 84,788
Less fineroe crarges (51,785)
Carrying amount of the liability - sze0s

from 1 January 2022 The rate chiarge

2021
£'000

3166
6196
72,013
81,375
(47609)
33766

T
Q

The finrance leases prmariy reate to a leasad cuilding and

Feaitrcare ecupment Trere are no
o

contngert

Wl
rental renewal or purchase option clauses Rents payacie ncrease by local inflation. Finance leases are

secured against the leased asseis,

The Comipany had no finance leases at 30 June 2022
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L S N S

Decommissicning (restated)
provigion Deferred tax
At 1 July 2021 20439 20,933
increase recogrised In praft and oss 21 11,495
increase recognised througn other comprenensive income - 18,202
‘mpairment o 16 -
nerease recognised in fixed assels 23,658 -
Rrecognised on subsidiary acquUISHIons - {2.568)
Adjustrment in respect oF prior years -~ (5,465)
Unwinding of discannt 249 -
Adjustrrent relating 1o Cnang= in accounting esfimate {3,373 -
Galn on rﬁm'a o o 1}5M o -
At 30 June 2022 41,023

41, 597

{restated}
Total
£000

A e T ale TR SR

41,372
11516
18,202
15
23656
{3.568)
(5465)
249
{3,373}
82,620

The decomerissioning provision s held © cover future cbligatic
t

operational wing, siomass and solar farms, o ther crigral condition.
ut lised for n excess of 25 years.

The Cornpany had no provisions at 30 June 2022

Maote 26 details the prior penod ad;ustments

18 Do Lo vhEee ST O L 0T ne T e Rl 0k

The Groun and Company have the follewing share capital

Sns Eo reture lang on o which there are

The amourts are not expected tc be

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, catled-up and fully paid £o00 (00D
1616,622,011 (2021 1456,755,258) :
Ordinary shares of £0 10 each 161,662 149676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'600 CE00C
1,616,622,011 (20¢ 96,755,258]

1,616,522,011 (2021 1,455,7552581 161,662 145,676

Ordmary shares of E0.10 each

Duning the year the Croup issued 119,866,754 (2021 1,501,19%,278 | crdinary shares of £0 10 each for an

aggregate nominal v
consideration of £20

alue of 211,987,000 (2021, £150.120,000) Of the shares issued during the year, total
3,750,000 (2021 £2,316,695,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise 1o a premium of
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£191,762,500 12021, £173,118.0C40) During the year the Group purchased ~i. (2021 4,244 020} oF its own
ordinary shares of £0.10 each with an aggrecate nominal vaiLe of ZniH (2021 £444.000; Totat concideration

<id
of £rt (2021 £6,844,000) was pad for the shares, giving rse to a premium of Enil (2021 £6.39%,00 O)
The Group has adopted predecessor accouning princ’pies as it was forred as par of a group
recoristruction, trerefore the L%a e capital and share prem:um account are treatec as | they had abways
existed Moverments in share capital ansing both before and afier the restructure are repartea as moverneants
in the Group shae capital

During the year the Company issuod 119,866 754

aggregate nominat value of £11,9872.000 (2021: £
consideration of £203,750.000 {2021 £2.316,655.0035] was paid for the Sha'@s, g ng rise toa ,Jr@mum of
£151,764,000 (2021 £2.166 575,000). Durimg !

~

ordinary shares of £0.10 each with an aggre
of £nil (2021 £6,844.C00) was pad for the sr

There s a wingle class of ordinary shares There are no restrictions on the gistributon of dvidends and the
regayment of capita!

Cash flow hedge reserve
Tre cash flow hedge reserve (s used o record transacuans arising fron the Group's cazh flow
hedging arrangements.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve anses from the differarice between the fair value of the sharas ssues and the boo
vaiues of the subsid ares acgu'rad

19 . v

The moverrer: in ro~-contralling interests was as follows
Group
Note 2022 2021
Group E'OOO £000
f\llJ‘;/K‘ 321 3,721 9570
Sa\g of subsid f*nry Jndengklr:gs and acauishan 57 _ (1842}
of non-controiling rerest
Toral com /’er’f—muf‘ 055 aitnbutable to )
e oo o (6.622) (4.007)
(2 901) 3721

HELah
srnitids
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As at 30 Jure 2022 there were o conungencies acress the Groug or Company.

Carrying amounts ¢ hinanciat assets and liabilit es

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'00C E'000 £000

R w3 btk Sorirat SRR PN w ST TSP wabrkhubbh it uh ane ke

- L e s e nenn s snax N N R R B HGRTRE RS 28 RS AU % b b i ad

Carrying amount of financial assets
Cebt instrunants measured at amuartised cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17,767
Measired at fair value throuign profr and loss - 6,469 - -

B ialolelas’c] 54,409 - - -

Moasured at farr value through other cor prehe

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Mezstired at amaortsed cost 1,126,163 556,384 76 16

tMeagsured as fair vaiue through oiner corrmprehensiva incomes: - 42,772 - -

Nore 26 detais the pror period adjusiments

Yo
wEned ST
By et
foitaetiaty

i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative ﬁnanciai instruments
The Group's financial r sk managament seeks to rminimise the exposare o rarket risk, cradit nsk, lgwidity

and cash flow risk, and energy market nsx

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

Tre energy Sector s experiencing swgm.wm turbuience and there 15 & r s« that forecast evels of income are
es

not ach eved due to changes 1n wholesale energy prices, off-fake contracts or government subsice
Changes in Government policy, or 'egulator rrervention may resutt :n =d incorme streams within th

group due to add vonatl levies

i

Currency risk

The Group presects its consnlidated financia statements in stering and conducts pusiness in a numser ¢°
other currencies, prncipaly Suro and Australian doilar, ro”sﬂwwtly the Group is exposec o foreign

exchange nsk due to exchange rate movements, which affect the Group's transacuonal experses and the
transiatior of earning anc net aszess of its nor-sterlinrg operaticns

Transactional exposures

Transactional exposures ane from administiat ve and other expense ir currencies otner than the Group's
presertaional currency [Swering) The Group erters 0 to forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign
excharge swaps o miagate the exchange raw risk for certam toreign currency payablet and recepts The
forwarg currency contracis and swaps are measured af falr value, which is determ ned using valualion

rechnigues that Lulise chiervahie inputs Tha key inputs used in valuing e denvatives are the forward
excharge rates for GBP AUD anc G337 EUR On 30 June zuzg tne far value of the foreign currency
ontracts was an asset of Fril (2021 £6,46250C) and 3 liapiuty of £n (2021 £143.000)

Translational exposures
Bsiance sheer ranslationat exposures avise or consoi dation on the retransiation of e baance sheer of
ron-stering operatons into stering, the Group's presentational currency The level of exposure 15 reviewes

Ly managerrent and the potenial foreign exchaﬂqe reovement is w *h nan acceptable level of ris and
therefore, tymicawy, the Group's nouCy 1o Not to actively hedge these expasures

Interest rate risk
The Sroun has exposure (o fluctuations ininterest ratas on < borrowings Where tne Groud enters inte
DOrrOWNG arrangornents with fleatrg rate nterest, a swap arrangement is entered into 10 fix

a0
the interest in order to Mitigate against ar morease innterest rates The ocrtion of interest 1o be fixed s
e

255e5sed 07 a3 case by case pasis Managerent can elect whether ¢ nedge accaunt for thes
arrangemerts on an indivicual transact on basis and cave elected to apoly medge accountng for interest

rate swans The swaps are based on a princ pal amount of the lcan “acilty ard mature on the same dae
O~ 30 Jure 2022 the cutstancing interest rale swans have a mafurly in excess Of
value 1§ ah gsset position of £54,405.000 (2020 wablivy of £42.629 500

Price risk

The Groun s g snort- o medidm-term le~der o the
deterioratcr in e level of house prices that affects

t
against, trere 3 a ns< that tne Group rmay ot recoln s ful exposure ThiS is mutigated *‘y the short-term

natu-e c* i ne conservatve level of loar o vaue t



b
i

4 ] FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Custorrér credit r:sk is mitigated through the Group's cradit contrel poicies, which arg in place 1o ensuse
that our cusiomers nave an approprate credt history and are rmonitores on an ongong bass

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity sk are managed by ensuring tnat sufficient cazh is ava'lacle o fund continaing and ‘uture operations,
L'ouidity ris< arises on bank oans ir place across the Group and s managed througn carcful monionng o
coverants and sensble

vels of debt. Borrowing 1s on a long-term kasis, whereas our revenue 1s received
throughout the year, as wel as interest and recermptors on our short-terr wan Book Cash fAow ris< s
rmanaged through ongoing cash flow forecasting o ensdre recapts are sdfficient to meet labluas as they
fall due

I S o

At the year end tng Group had caplal commitreants as follows

2022 2021
Group ‘000 £000

ARk g e I o ¥ T WP 0 3 TR AR

Conrracted for but not prowicded in these financ 347,254 50,156

Undrawr taciites un ioans 1O Domoyers 173,600 92683

B B P NS o T Te AP T o PR EHPRANR B R ST 0 R LB RIS DR

A230 June the Group nad totat future minimurn lease payrments urder non-canceliaile operating leases
as follows

2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings Buildings

£000 £'000 _E0DO E'000

BRSO 2 R T R R SR YRR AN R B oot st ok B ORI R et S o i R RS B SRR

fPayrrents due

Mol iater thar one year 8,707 661 8,031 749

Later than ono year and rof later than fve 31,627 726 30,364 1686
years

Later than five years 95,664 - 118,932 9

135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

The Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangements (2021 norel.

Unrder sections 294A and 4794 of tne Comparies Act 20086, the parent company Ferr Trading Lirmitec has
guaranteed ai outstanding lablites on those companies taking the exermplion t which the sugsidiaries list
on pages 79 w© 90 were subject 10 at the 30 June 2022 untl they are sabsfied im fult These Lab-lites tota

£915m Such guarantees are enforceable agamst Fern Trading Lirmited oy any person 1o whorn any such
liatility is due.

“he Compary had no capital o other commitments at 30 June JC22,
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On 11 July 2022, Fern Trading Development Limited ("FTELUY, & subsidiary of the Group, successfully sold
Darlington Poirt Holdco Pty Limitec o Octopus Aqstralia Master Trust, A srna!l profit of £820 J’:u was made
on the saie

On the 1st of Decerrher 2022, the Group acoLired rig a £25m credit voucher and the night 1o use

rnob:le acernses from Trree UK via a Strateg'c C rnec:‘v'ty Agreemeﬂt, thus making the first stiep towards
beccrming an mobile virtual network operator,

Under FRS 102 23.1A disciosures need not be given of Transactions entered into between two or more
members of 2 Group, orovided that any subs diary which 1s a party 1o the transaction = whoily owred by
such a merrper.

During the year, fees of £77534 000 (2021 £61.154,200) were charges to tre Group by Cotopus
¥
investmenis Lirmred ar

(‘F\

lated party dog o s significart imfuuence over the Prt\ty Cotopus irvestments
totalirg £20.155 (2021 £16,000) by tne Group AU Lne

L'mited was recnargea legal ana professiona
year end, an amount of £5 500 (2021 £219.000) was outstarding which s included .n trade creditors

Thne Group s entited © a profit share as a result of ks investment in Terido LR a re ated party due to key
manadgement perscnnet in comrion In 2022 a share of profit equal to £5,242,000 (2021 £442,000) has
peen recogniced by the Group. At the year end, the Group has an interest i the member's casiial of

L35 452,000 {2021 £12,000,000) and accrued income cue of £5,276,000 (2022 £47‘9.000).

ne Group engages in lendi~g activities which mclude balance: arovidea to re ated pariies. Regard ng
entines with key martagement personnel in commaorn, Ioe rs of £63490000 (2021, £173,224.0C0), acorued
7 D0 {2020 226202000 ard deferred income of £l (2021 £101,0001 were cutstanding
at nd. Dur ng 17 year interest income of £71636,000 ‘ZF L £17.58.000) and fees of £334.000 {2021
£536,0C0; were recognised in relation to these leans,

During the year 12 Groun acquiree 9 reserve power cornpanies from companies managed by Octapus
-

Investments Lmiteg, a relatec ao now 27 a) for details of the comparies acqguired

As at 30 cune 2022 £no (20
party by key managemen: personnel in common

£3,950,275) was owed to the Compary by Bracken Tradirg Limited, a re.ateo

Otner than the ransact'ons disclosed anave, the Company's other related party transachons weare with its
wholy ownec subs-diary mertbers of the G’oup.

25 -

intne ogirion of the directars, tnere 13 7o altmate cortroiling party of parent company
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P P T

a) Group structuring review
We nave conductes a review of prior years' accownting treatment of intercompany restructunng In this
review managerent identified unamortsed goodwil balances n relation to these fransachcns We have

acjustad tne previous years to reflect the implementaticn of amortsation backdated (¢ wnen the relevant

transactions cccurred, The accumutaied irnpact for the gocdwii arnorusauon in the orofit and loss for 2021
was 8 (20200 £5 3 the moverment of £2.7m has ceen restated througnout the 2021 comparative

numars A sumimany of tre imoact of the correction s provided below

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) {restated)

Group o £'000 £000 £000

Gooowil 583388 15,235) 578653
Fetaired eanings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated} (restated}
o ‘ ‘ - E'000 £000 E£'000
Coodwli 602,711 (8,049) 594,662
Retairod camings {(123,920) 8,049 115,871

As part of the review of the intergroup ~estructuring mertioned above, management identfizd one of the
restrctures hac been incorrectly accounted “or in a sub secuon of the group. No further erqars were
discovered in the review Toe accuruiated rrpact for goodwill amortisation in the profit ang w038 for 2621
was £25m (2020, £1 3m), the mavement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers T his mpact to the 2020 opening retained earnirgs was offsel by £2 1Im o written back against bad
gebt experses Management have corrected the dentfed errar with the foliowng imoact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group ‘ e s £'000 el 000 £000
oot S o 583,988 29183 554,805
Retaincd earmirgs 41,185 859 42,084
Dentors 842549 (2.724) 835825
Creditors armounts fallng due within one year (232.813) 496 {232,317}
Fixedt assets 1346655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

Group S £'000 ~ Fo00 £000
GOO(NJ\U Trmmmm—— o o 602,711 ND(E%.963) o 574,748
Retained earnings (123,920) (321) (124,241}
Cebtors 600,726 (2,724] 598,002
Creditors amourits falling dug within ore year {207,318} 496 (206,822}

Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1581682
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b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a revigw of all consalidat on eniries at subsections of the group We Fave (dertified an

error relating to 2017 when geferraes tax agjusirmenis were entered as a corsolidation entry and had
subsequently not bean reversed, We have checked the tax per subsidiary account atd have ersured that the

relevant balances are Ccorrect. ~ e error was posted al a conzotdated level only ana has now been correctad:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group o

Rerarod earnings 41,185 (4,764) 36421
Creciors amourts falung due vataes one year [252,813) 4764 (228,049)

Tris has a knoc< effect inwo Jure 2021, the ~estated balances are as foliows
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)
k £'000 £000 £'000
Retanco earmnings (123,920 14764} 1128.684)
Creditors, amourss faling dua witiin one year {207,318) 4,764 (2002 554}

In prepanng the tax corrputatons for 2022, e Grous's tax advisors have noticed an overicoked
assurplion in Grevious years tax consobdation calcualations. Within the previously unreccgnized deferred max
assels reld witr N the group sorre were avalable on a consolidaied level to offset the Group's defarred tax
Lawility Or anindwidua: cormpany basis the deferred tax in previous years Fad been correctly recognised. A
part of tnese deerred azsels are in relatien o cash fow hedgses hale w thin the group wh ch are accourtes
for withun other comprehesive incomse The accurrulated i pact for the t2x charge ir the proit and (oss
for 2021 was £15r (20200 £15.3m) tha movement of 300« has been restatea throeughaut the 2021
comparalive qumbers

Asummary of the impact of tre ¢correction s grovides beiow:

Group

Retaned earn.ngs
Cash flowy hedge reserve

Dioferrad tax crovisians

Year ended
30 June 2020
(as stated)

41,185
63.837

£o00 .

(36,484}

Adjustment

£000

(15,299}
(2.875)

13174

Year ended
30 June 2020
{restated}

£000

25886
59,962
(17,310}

!



g
e

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S0 JUNE 204

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
) £000 & £ 000 . fooo
o i (23920)  as00% (30013
Cashi flow neage resorve 17098 {2,119} 14,579
[Dote f(f‘ A pros VIS ONS {38,145] 17,212 (20,933
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2620
(as stated) (restated)
Group o ) £000 £'000 ‘ £ 000 '
Retsined carrinss T e w3829y 27356
Gooowil: 583988 134.517) 549471
Caiors 842,544 (2.724) 839,825
Feq asset 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
[eferred tax prov sions {36.484) 19,174 {17.310)
Cast flow necge resarve 63,837 (3.875) 56,962
Credtors arounts falling due within one year (232.813) 5259 (227,554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group : . EOOO . EDOO £000
Retaned earmings T nzsszn) Tazizer (36,049)
Cooowil: 602,711 {36,011 566,700
Debtors 600,726 (2.724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1.581.682
Deforeed tax provsons {38.145) 17212 {20,933}
Cash flow neage reseryve 17098 (2,119) 14,979
Creditors: arnounts falling due within cne year (207,318) 5,255 (202,059)
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a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 July 2021, the Greup acquired 9 reserve power s tes througn the purchase of 100% of the share capital
for corsigeration of £18. ‘
The follewing tables surmmarise the erznon pad by the Groug, tre ‘ar vatue of the gssets acgured, !
and e labilties assurmed at the acquisiion date
Cans:deratmn £ ‘000 ;
bodishiidivabishbodbrh bt | B R s AR s 1 7RSSR ¢ ) AR £ e SERIRRS s 16 i
Cash . i
Total consuderallon -
Details of the far value of the net assets acguired anc goadwid arsg are s fo lows 4
Book value Adjustments Fair value |

£000 £000 £000 j

breed as 80788 28553 52.235
Trade and other recevabies 254 - 254
Frepaymeors 635 - 635 ;

Trade and other creciton (2,206} - (2.208)
Losr (58 816) - (58,216)

Net assets acqulred _ ‘ 28,55_:’: N (28553) -

Cash and cash equvalets 7858 - /858 ;

|
. H

!

Total consideration - ;
Goodw ll resuii ng frorm tre busiress comhbination was ~il !

ne conscligated staterment of corrpraenonsive neorng for tne year incluces £45 803 000 revenue a~d a :
praft afer tax of £686 000 0 respect of this acguision
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b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
QOn 22 Cctobes 2021, the Groug acoured Doveryard Lirrited and 112 subsiciary through the purchase of
100% of the share caocital for consideration of £13,414,000.

The followng takles surmrarise the conuderation paic by the Group. the fair value of azsefs acguired, and
liabilisies assumed at the acouisiion date

. . .
Consideration £000

Cash 12,377

v altricutable coss

Total consideration

Detaiis of the fair value of the net assets acqured and goodwill arising are a3 follows:

Book Adjustments
values

£'000 £000

Fixed assers 569 -

“rade and oiner rece vables 52 - 52
Prepayrments and sccrued income 183 - 193
(467) - {487)

Trade anc oter creditorns
Net assets acquired 3437 - 347
Loouw 13,067

Totalconsideration . 1314

Goodwil. resulling from the busirness combinaion was £13.067.000 ard rnas ar esumated useful life of 25
years, reflectng the iifespar f the azsets acquired

-

he consoldatad staterment of compraenensive income for the yaar incluges Enil of revenue and a less

before tax of £123,000 in respect of this acgu'siton
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c) Dulacca acquisition

0 27 August 2021, the Croup acquired Dulacca WF Holdeo PTY Lid ana its three subsicianes
purchazse of 100% of the share capeal for consicarauon of £115.680,000.

Tre folowing lable

and the ligoilives assume at i

Consideration

PR TR B b0 0w R

Cash
Drectly atnbutable costs

Total consideration

e acquisition dafe A st of he envties acqured included in notfe

- - ~Aypooo  E hange Rate
217,557 18904
1,126 18904

218,683

trrougn the

samrnanse the consideration paid oy the Groug, t=e ‘ar value of the assets arcuired,

29

R R R 1o 1 FO TR AR o W WROABARL

Detals of the Tar vaiue of the net aosets acguren ana inangible atis.ng are as foliows:

Free
Trade ard omer recevailes

and cash eqguavalenrs

Net assets acquire

irtandg

Total consideration

uats and defeired nocome

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

AUD'C00

Book Adjustments
values

107633 - 107,633 56,9357 -

10,131 - 10131 5,357 -
103,072 - 103,072 54,525 -
(10,352) -

"209,8

- 209884
8799
218,683

AUI?’qC,lOO ) {A!JD‘ODG £000 £'000

e d e B BT DO HNB R ERE TR B S B o e ewatT 2 Lame

(10,952} {5,793) -

Intangibles resulung from the a558t purenase was £4.654 000 and nas an estimated useful life of 30 years

reflecting tre Lfespan of the assets acoured,

The consol.dated statement oOf

fax of £237.000 in respect of this acquistionr

comprehensive roome for the year imeluces Enil of reverue and a oss after
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
Cn 31 Jandary 2022 the Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangernent Lirnited a project sources for rooflton
solar, through the purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £4 7£5, 000,

The following tables sumrmarise the consderation paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, and

iabilities assurned at the acgus uon date

Consuderatlon £000
Cask 3672

Deferred consideration -

Drectly atlriibutable © ost: 1,083

Total consnderatlon 4,765

Details of the fair value of the net assats acquired and goodwll ansirg are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
. E000 £000  £000

S —— o . s s 156
Icrs (574) - (574}
Trade ard other recevanles 4G0 - 400
Casn and cash eguivaents 1.019 - 1,015
Other ioans 46) - (46)
Net assets a“cqwred 7 I S 955 o MM955

3 81
Total consnderatlon 4 765

Goodwil resalting from tne busiress combinaton was £3,810,600 and nas an estimated usefut lfe of 10
[g=]

years, reflecting the estmated fespan of the assets acquirad

The consolidatad siatemert of comprenensive income for the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a loss
before tax of £424,000 in respec: of this acguisiion.
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e) Elivia Homes acquisition
Cn 23 May 2022, the Group scguired Elivia woidirgs

MENTS 30

JUNE 2022

Lirted and its subsidiaries, throwgh the purcnass of
00% of the skare capital for corsideration of £31,584 GO0,

The fciovang ables summanse the consideraton paid by the CGroup, the far vauue of ass

tabilities assumed at thie acowsition date A list of

thre entinies acquired a7¢ inc.uded i note 2

acqured, ard

Conmderatnon e . o " £°000
685
';';tﬂ consideration i ) ) o ?;i:éEi
Details of the far value of tre ret assets scquired and gocdwil ansiag are as follows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
E’OOO £'000 E 000 )
Irtanoible assets 11,767 - 11.767
Stock 69939 - £9,339
Trade and other debtors 2.609 - 2,609
Cashi and cash equralents 11603 - 11603
Accruals and deforred incorme 14201 - (420}
Frovisions (930} - (930)
Deferred tax 6,000 {1.400) 4,600
Tradc and other credic (69,453) - (69 453)
Net assets acquired 31,533 (1.400) 30133
luC/Jf-/‘ 1 T T T 1 \151”“
Total consﬁeratmn 31 684 M

Coodw:ll

years, reflectng the Lfespan of the assets acqgu red,

orof ££1,502 000 in respect of ¢

resutting from tne business comupoimation was £1 551 000 and bas an es

s aTaLisihionr

The consoldatec statenrent of comprehensive ncome for the year iIncluges revenue of £25 034
to £

timrated ysefu e of LG

o~

fi00 anc a

1
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
P S PR TSV S AR

Our reported resdlis are prepared in accordance witn Urited Kngdom Accounting Standards, inclucing
Firarcial Reporting Strardarg 102, as detalled in the F nancal Statements 2tartirg on page 35 of the Annual
Report. Ir rmeasuning odr performance, the inzncial measures that we use include those that have been

ved from cur reported resalts in order 1o eliminate facions “hat distort year-or-year comgansons T-ese
are comadeﬂed ron-GAAP francizl measares

Net debt
We nrovide net dett noaddiron to cash and grass debt as a way of assess ng odr overal cash posit onand it
is computed as folows

2022 2021
£000 £000

1.044,218 871918
5,364 -

AR RS S L KEERE Y h S SR RRER 2 £ AR ¢ ATt Ae Br AR A T AT N arhn ka0 AR R R 2« i RBak a0 mmatanann cvami s FaumennT3ON00 TTLER -

Barx lgans ang overdrafts

Other lgars

Gross debt - a " 1,049,582 871, 918
(‘asn at L:mk de m rwwd 1t (256,415} (172, 478;

Net debt 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA ;
Farnings before interast, tax, deprec ation ana amaortisation (EBITOAT) 1s calculated by acjusung profit after
tax for irterest, tax, deprecation and amorusation, 11 additior to income and experses that de not retate to f
tre day to day cperations of the Growp We provice EB'TDA in adoition to profit after tax as it alows us to }
assess our performance without the effecis of financing and capital exoenditures '
Tre foiowing tadle detzns e adjustments made to the regortec resuts !
|
(restated)
2022 2021 ‘
e S L.E000 Foo0
Profit/{loss) for the financial year 31,310 (31.012)
Add
Arcorisat on ol Intangible assels 2 37,849 37,704
irmoairrnent of ntzngible assets 8 7913 - !
Dapreciation of tangible assers 2 101802 84,697
Irterest payable and similar cxpenses b 33,554 36,067 !
Exceptionsl temis 1105 - ’
Tax 7 16,264 85,349
Less
Ircome from other fixed asset IMvestnents (5,249) (443)
Share of operating Lrofs injoint venture - {1,755 ‘
Frofic an disposa!l of suhsidiaries {29,532) (28.568) i
irterest receivatile and simmilar incorne <] {120) 19%7) ’
EBITDA S ' - . 194,916 104,036

Note 28 detals the pror penad adjustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
29

Detzils of the supsiciary undertak ngs are as folows,

Country of Class of Principal
Name e e .. iMcorporation shares Holding activity
:f‘-\bbots Ripton Solar Zpergy Roiding er\tec ' UR Ordinary 100% Holding company
Adaurda Sowar SPYV L Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Ernergy generation
Agrisct-Z SARF France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Al Netwaorks Lirnited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Allpeings Fibre Limiteg® UK Ordinary 100% Eir%rguﬁ?;\gork
Auchercarroch Erergy Limied”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
ALcuhine Land Campany Limimed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Averue Solar Farmm Lmiteg”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury Power Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisolzire 5 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisclare 7 SARL France Ordinary 106% Holding company
Beetiey Energy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Beighton Energy Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Dormant comparty
Beinneun Wind Farm Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bellhouse Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Estate Solar Lirmited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Blalzy Selar Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Belarr Erergy Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Limited UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Helding company
Bratton Fleming Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Erl;?te((rdem Sclar Developments Holdings Uk Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Odyn Sclar Developrments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Poyer Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Reserve Power Lirited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cacias Energy Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirmited® lreland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

BaBBe g

ab-f\/e‘u. Solar Farm Limited”

Cathiert Energy Lirmniea®”

Causilgey Limitea™

Cedar Energy ang Infrastructure Lmiteg

CEPRE Berceronre SARL

Certrale Eoenne de Produciion d Erergic de
Grandbos SARL

CERET de 3 Salesse SARLY

CEPE delacorbe .C erteale Eoilienne de
Froduction ¢ Energie de Laconbe; SARLY

CEZPE de Marsanne SARLY

CEPE phaut du Saue’

T T U RN LB RS TS S S

CEPZ de la Roche Quatre Rverss SARL

CEPE du cays de 5t Se'ne SARL?

CERS SAS

Crelson Meadow Erergy Linrited”

Crusbon Solar Farm Heichngs Lirmted™

Chittering Soiar Two timited™
Cilgwyn Energy amited”

Clann Farrn Limined”

laramond Solar SPY L Limiuted™

cl
CL" Developments Lim ted”
Ci2 Ervirogas Limited™”

CLP Services Limited”

CLPE Projects 2 Limited
CLPE ROC ~ 1 Umited
CPEROC - 2 Lmiteg™

T i e
— 3 Lirrden

AR b €300

Country of
mcorporatlon

CREAL R % b S 1

Uk
Uk
UK
UK

France
France
France
France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

SRR B

Class of
shares

I

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Principal

Holding actlvuty

R R b e BB

100%
106%
160%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%

e s 5255 S s ity TR

Energy generat\on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Erergy generation
Erergy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of Q&M
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
olding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

NN s s s e COTPOFBMON | shares ~~ Holding activity .
‘CE,PF. ROC ~ 34 uimited™ UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC ~ 4 Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Enargy generation
CLPE ROC — 44 Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Clyre Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Colsterworin Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Conno~ Bricge Erergy Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Coteshach Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatior
Cour Wind Farre {Scotland) Lirmitea™ UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Crapnel Farrm Umsted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crayfern Homes (South Coast) Limreg*s UK Ordinary 100% Ejrjfggﬁ:{;&;
Crayfern Limited!! UK Ordinary  100% gg;i;ﬁ?fua;;gs
Crayferr Surnley (Stinfoid) Limited! UK Ordinary  100% gjﬁfg;"gﬁgi
Crayrrarsh Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy gereration
Cressing Solar Farm Limsited™ UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cynon Fower Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dafen Reserve Fower Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Soiar imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ceepdale Farm Sclar Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Doveryard Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Drapers Farm Limited" UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Dutacca Erergy Project Co PTY Ltg?? Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Duilacca Erergy Project FinCo PTY Lid*? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Culacca Energy Project Holdeo Co PTY Lt Austratia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca WF Holdco PTY Ltd*? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dyffryn Brodyn Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eakring Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Flecsol Camargue SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 7 SARL? France Crdinary 90% Energy generation
Eecsol France 11 SARL® France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Flecsol France 15 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy oeneration

Elecsal Frarce 19 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

e SR
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

R RS s T TSRS, 5 00 S S SRR RS AR v 2o PP

fiecso! France 27 SARLY

Flecso, France 24 SARLY

Elecse France 25 SARL?

Flecso. France 28 SARL®

Elecsol France 45 SARL®

Elecsol Haut Var SARLY

Elios Erergy 2 Franze SAS?

Ehos Energy 2 Linmited

Elos Energy 3 France 5457

Elics Erergy Houd'ngs 2 cmten™
£lios Energy Holaings 3 Limited™
Elios Erergy Hoidings Limitea™

Elios Renewabie Energy wmited”

Flivia Cevelogrert Finance Limited?

clvia =oldings Limited

Elv:a Homes {Centraly Lanited?s

Elvia Homes (Dormant 2) Livred !
Elvia Homes [Grange Road) Limsitea™
Elivia Homes (Netleyl Limited?:

a Homes [Southern) Lmitedtt
Elrsia Homes (Surbiton) Limited! s
Eirvia Homes Lirmited™*

Elivia Narth Lineted™

rm

Elivia Crford wmited?

Eiivia Soutn Limited™!

dornestic buldings

-

Country of Class of Principat
incorporation shares Holding activity
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 160% Energy generation
France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
france Ordinary 160% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
trance Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
France Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
o Construction of
UK Qrdinary 100% domestic buildings
Ordinary Financial services
UK Daferred 100% T S YIes
holding cormpanies
Preference
o Construction of
VK Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
) N Construction of
UK Ordinary 1eoz domestic buildings
. . Construction of
UK Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
R o Development of
K Ordinary 10o% bullding projects
. . Construction of
UK Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
. o Construction of
UK Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
UK Ordinary ~ 100%  DEvelopment of
building projects
, ) . Development of
UK Ordinary 100% building projects
Construction of
) o dormestic buildings
L = >
K Ordinary 100% Buying and seling of
own real estate
UK Orcinary  100%  onstruction of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name L incorporation shares ] Holdmg activity .
ek s £ AR 6+ re 3ot e 4235 oL SRS RSP ST RN R e 155 LS 055 .Conmuction "
Elwiz Soutrern ,drmited!! UK Ordinary 1G0% dornestic buitdings
Buying and setling of
own real estate
Flicorbe Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
Energy Power Resources Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% ?:;igzminmi and
SErvices
EFR E.y uimited” UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Eye Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EFR Glanford Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewabie Enargy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scetland Limites®” UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
EFK Tretford Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eucalyptus Energy Holangs Lirited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eucalyptus Energy Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Felbwel: Erergy Lirnted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limied” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Holdings Lirited” UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Farn Energy Wind Foldings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding compariy
Fern Fibre Limiteg”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Fern Healthcare Holdings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Infrastructare Limeted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding comparty
Fern Renewalile Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rooftop Solar {A] Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Roofiop Solar (BBO™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftog Solar (Zestec) Lirnted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Trading Development Lirrited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trad' ng Group Limited UK UK 100% Holding cormpany
Fern UK Power Developrnents Lemited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fiorophos Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Lirm:ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fraistnorpe Wnd Farm Liruted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

SR A, AR R A M e

e ngn

pes

Country of
lncorporatlon

uafla‘f Ere rgy L ‘rﬂuef‘

Giganet Fibre Ltd™

Grganet Lirmited™

Glenchamber Wind Snergy Lirmited =3

Grange Wirnd Faren Limited™
Guardonde SP z.0 0

Harbourne Power Limiteg™
Hayrnaker iMount Mily Lrd™

Haymaker (Natewood! +o

Hayraaker (Natewood) _d*

Haymaker iOaklands) Holdrgs Limited™

Haymaker (Oakiards) Ltd™
Helm Power 2 Limited*
Heim Power Limeted™”
Higher Knapp rarm Lirned™
Hill End Farn Limitegd™
Hollarncor Liritea™

Huli Reserve Power Limitea”™
Hurgit SPYV 1 Limited™
irrrmingham Power Lirrted™
Irwel Power L rnitec”

Jamescr Road Energy Limited™

Jurassic Finre Hol

2rgs Limited”

Jurassic Fibre Limited

Kl Sower omted”
Larigar Power Lrted™
Lenharm Solar Limited”
Little T Solar Limed™

Litfieton Sclar =arm Lmiad™

LLY Cor=municatcns [

Lodaon Power Limmiteg”

hngs Limited™

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Principal

Holdmg actwuty

Class of

Ordmary 100%
Ordinary 1G0%
Ordinary 100%
Orcinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 160%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 90%
Ordinary 90%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

T e e— R R A b o o s 052 TR

Dormant company

Fipre network
production

Fibra network
croduction

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding cornpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Hotdirng company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

g R R AR e

Lovedean Limiteg™
Luminance Saiar Limted™
MIZ Sorons Limited”
Mzanston Thorne Limied”
March Energy Lirmited”
Marden Power Limmrted”™
Marley Thaich So.ar Limuned™
Meadows Fanm Limited™
Metbaurn Solar L mited™
Mettor LG Energy Lirmited”

Melror LG Rolding Limred”

Meltor LG ROC Limited™

tMeltor Renewalble Erergy (Holdings) Limted”

teltorn Renewable tnergy Newoo Limited™

=

rMelton Renewabie Energy UK Limmited
Ml Hitl Farrn Solar Limited™
Mirgay Farm Holding Limited™
MEP Decoy Lid”

MSP Strete Lnd™

MSP Tregasscw Limited™

MTS Hatchlands Sotsr Ld™
Newvern Power Limited™

New Row Farm Limuted™
Newlands Solar Limited™

Ninnis Farm Limited™

North Perrots Fruit Farm Limited”™
Northwich Power Limited™
Notos Erergy Limited”

Ogmore Power Limited”

Oldhal: Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™

Orne Ashford Healthcare Limited

Cne Hatheld Hospital Limited

Country of Class of
incorporation shares ..
UK- Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordimary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LIK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
K Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary

Holding _
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

89%

S0%

activity

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generaticn
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company

Asset leasing
company

Holding comparny
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Provision of
healthcare services

PR e
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Name

e R R CIRERAREY ER R wn i s,

One Heatl thfare Partn T L rr‘m:d
Orle Wedgehill Solar Holdirgs Limited™
Crta Wedgshil! Solar Limited™
Falfreys Barton L rited™

arciau Haoldings Limited™
ParcCia. Limzed”

Park Broacbandg Limited™

Pearmas Solar 2 Ltd™

Pitchford {Cordover ATthe'd & Stockbatch)

Lmited”

Pitts Farm Limated™
crinos Solar Limited”

Pyms Lane Solar tta”

Cruegens Park Road Energy Lirmites

Range

ord Care Lirmted™

Rangeford Chertsey Limited™

igeford Crencester amited”

Griing Linzead™

Rarngeford Hoidings o rmited™

Rangeford Paxenng Limited™

Rangeford RAP Limited™

Rangeford Retirermerit Living Holdrgs Ltd™

Paq\jerr rel 5 leford Lir-mad”

sl

eaches Farmr Liruted”

el

edlake Pows- Limiteg”
Rysion Esiate Lirmited”™
Sammnai SARL®

Seloy Power Limited™

SF= Fore Lrmted®

Country of Class of
incorporation shares

UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
LUK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
UK Crdinary
France Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

85%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

106%

100

38

100%
100%
100%

=
o
QO
ER Y

100%

Principal

leding actrwty

DR RS w310 HOO B A s s« P YRR b o

Holding company
Helding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
ratirement village

Retirement village
developrnent

Retirement village
developrment

Retirement village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
developrnent

Retirement village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
producticn
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Singrug Holdings Limitec™

Smgrug Lirnited”

Six Hills Lane Ragdal

Skeiprocke Energy Limitea™

Slavigntergate mited”

sretterton Rerewsble Power Fues Limited”

Sretterton Henewable Power Hold ngs Limited™

Sretterton Renewable Povwer Limited™

Solarh LPDE SaRL

Solarf SP0T SARLT

i)

olarh SPOZ SARL®

(V3
()

Solarfi SPO4 SARL?
Solarh SPOS SARL®
Solarh 5P08 SARL®

Solarfi SP10 SARL®

Southcombe Farm Limied™

St Asaph Power Linmuteg™

Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limited™
Seadfact Rudge Solar Ltd™

Steadfast Shiptan Beunger Sclar Lirnited™

Stellar Power Limited™

Swoneyhil Energy Liruted™

Suis Energy Lirnited™

Summerston Energy Lirnited®™

Surley Crayferr Lavant LLP'

Swash Fiore Contracting Lirmized®

Syash Fiore Lirmed®

Swish Fiore Services Limited?

Swish Fiore Yorkshire®

Swish Trading Limized™

Q
3]
-
5
|
T
]

with Fiore Networ«s [ g

Country of Class of
incorporation shares Holding
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 10C%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Qrdinary 10G%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 100%
France Crdinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 1006%
france Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary i00%
UK Ordinary 1002
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary i007%
UK Ordinary 1007%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK NA 50%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 80%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 80%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 80%

Principal
activity

Holding conpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dorrmant company
Holding company
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
production

Holding company
Fibre network
production

Fibre netwaork
production

Fibre network
production

Holding company

R B RS
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

SR e e

TGC Qolar ]fJ/ Limited™
TGC Solar 107 Limpted™
TGO Solar 68 Lirmited”

TGO Solar 85 Umitea™

The Fern Power Compary Lirmited”™

The =Holues Sclar Farm Limited™”

TiHinghamr Power Limited™
Tockills Energy Linited™
Tredown Farn Dimited™
Turves Solar Limited™

UKSE 15 Solar Limited™

Uritad Mires Energy Limitec™
YICSF Lo

Victara Solar Limited”

Viners Energy L'mited

Va8 Lmrited ™

Yo'ltafrance 13 SARLY
Voltafrance SARL

Vorboss Limited”

Vorboss S Inc®

Wadswick Green L meed”™

Wadswios Green Sroperty SetvCes umies

Warrington Power Limited”™
Water.ac Sclar Park —~oldngs
Water.oo Solar Park Limited”
Wieek Farrm 2 Limited™
Westwood Power Limited”

Westwood Soar Limited”

Tnorespby Estate (Budbyd Limted™

Crmited™

Country of

mcorporatlon

* A8 ekl s < 1

UK
LK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

France
France
France
France

UK

LUSA

UK

K

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of
shares

AR RN s s S

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Principal

Holding actzwty

g b

1007%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100G%
100%
100%
100%
100%

PR b o

Energy g@neratnon

Energy generanon
Energy generation
Energy géneration
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwerk
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibire network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre netwaork
production

Retirement village
operatar

Service charge
administrator

Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Ermergy generaton
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

N ot et e - iMCOTPOration shares = Holding activity
a\-\r’etherden Erergy Limited™ o UK Ordinary ' 100% . Energy generation
Wharf Power Limired™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whigdon Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Whinney Hill cnergy Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Winceile 5olar Holdings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolvernampton Power Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Enargy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farr Lirmited!®” UK Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Bradford Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Enargy generation
WEE Mullay ngton Holamgs Lim ted™ K Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Hullav' ngton Lirmited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Park Wall Lirmitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WESE Pyde Drove Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Asset Managernent Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
F‘c;R&Og fm) ;uar ['jBD) LM;qrpq e R R R e 1 1 R e &09/0 8/4042 -
Cuckoo Internet Lid 31/08/2022
Y.infi Digital Limited 13/07/2022
404 Limited 2271172022

aTar=

“Subsidianes cxempt frorm audt by virlue of 34804 of the Cormpanics Act 2006,
“Subsidianes exempt from audit by vrtuc of s4¥9A of the Corpanes Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dissolved or sold during the year and up until signing L .. Date
Bemr,‘;m Hoidiﬁ?:,s e : i 35 e TR o 3RS e L R H A s RS 20/07/2021
Ridge Wind Acqguisition Lirnited 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RiageWinag Acquisizions L-mited 14/09/2021

Fern Energy RicgeWird Holdirgs Limited 21/09/2021

Fern Energy “artnierships Holdings Lim:ted 21/09/2021
Fraisthorpa (Holding) Lim:ted 29/03/2022
OY Oldna!l Energy Recovery Lirm:ted 13/05/2022
Commel L 15/0G/2022
Carlngten Pont Holdeo Pty Lirited GR/07/2022
Darlington Paint Solar Farm Pty _imited 0870772022
Darirgton Fomnt Subnoldco Pry Limited 08/07/2022
INordic Power Dovelopmert Lirnited 2301242028
Vayrinkangas Wind Farm Oy 2311212021

Saunamaa Wind Farm Oy 2341242021

The registered cffice o all comparies listed above s at 6(h Floor 33 Holborn, London, England, ECIN 2HT
excepl for those set cut below
1. ul Grzybowska 2/29 00-121 Warsaw, Poland

2. Pinsent Masons

LF Capuai Sguare. 58 Mornson Sireet, Edinburgn, Scotlana, EH3 8B

3 1 West Regent Street, Glasgaow, G7 1TAP

A4 22 rue Alpnonse de Neavile, 75017 Fans, France

5 6tn Fioor 2 Grand Caral Square, Dublr 2, D32 2342, Irelard

6. The Carriage House, Station Works, Stanuen Roaa, Claverdon, Warwicksnive, Unitec Kingdom, CV35 8PE
7 Zone industrielie de Courtineg 115 Rue Du Mourelat 84000 Avignon, Frarce

& 13 zalisbury Place, London, Zngiand, Wik 1F]

9. The Corporaticr: Trust Comipany, Corpcration Trust Center, 1209 Grange Street, W.imingron 19801
Urited Swates

10, 4tk Toor Satre Court, 20 Caste Ter-ace, Edinburgh, Scotand, EHL 2EN

Z2. bevel 33 101 Coiling Street, Me bourne, Victona, 3000, Aust-alia
13 Beaufort Tourt, 2gg Farm Larc, Kings Langley, Hertfordsnire, W4 2LR
~4  7-8 Sratford Place, Lonaon, England, WiC 1AY

The direciors Believe that the carying value of the investments is suoperted oy ther underlying ret assels.
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Lirmiteq is an urbsted company Fvery month, our Soara of Direciors agrees a prce at which it

wil be willing o issue rew snares The share price 15 umabdltec,
The Agures below nclude the share price ¢ the previous parent (now Fern Trading Group Limited? as well
as this entiy,

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19

- A
.&w‘w"""“j

16
WMWWW
15 —y

i
14 MWM A

o
13 o
I
12 e
MW“”M
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Perficrrance is caiculated based on the sale price for —ern's snares at 2 Junc cacn year, The share pnce is
not supject o audit by Ernst & Young LL-

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Dlscrete share price performance

o RawrRES, 5w aurpEn HRMOLPER S EUR P e FRRY BT ST Tpre Barrge rE

June 2021-22 9.91%

June 2(2:29—21 | | 4.87%

aune 2018-19 6.23%

J-;ne 2016;‘;7 . - - | 554%

June 2015-16 7 3.83%

Jne 201415  3e8%
June 2613-14 3.72%

:;u,ne 201271.3. e o 397% e
June 2011-12 1.02%

Soume Ociopus Investments Limited, 2 Gune 2022
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

Directors i Registered office
PS Latham i 6th Floor, 23 Holoor,
K] Willey ! London. Englond ECIN 2HT
25 Jariow
T Arthur aopointed 1 July 2022) {independent puditors
e ¢ i Errst & Young LLP
s g e g o g :
Cipany setretary ! Bedford House,
Octopus Comoany Secretanal Services Limited I 1E Bedford Stree:
i Zelfast BTZ 707
Company number
12601636

Forward-looking statements

Tris Annoal Report contans certan forward-icoxing siatemients related o the Company's future business

and financial cerforrmance and future events ¢r dovelcpments These statemerts are based o1 the current
knowledoe and expectat.ons of management and are subject 1o asiumprions, ris<s and uncartaintiez, some
of wrich are related to factors that are beyord the cotrol of the Cormpary Acordingy, No assuranca can
be gven that any particuiar expectation wil ce met and forward-locking staterrents regarding past rerds o

actvities shoud rot be 1aken a5 a representat-or tngt sueh trends o actwities wil 2ontinue in the future Past
performance canro: be relicd o~ 35 a guice o future perforrance. Nothing in this Annual Report should be

consirued 35 a oroft forecast

j



